

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP)

For East Bay Plain Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan Periodic Evaluation, Amendment and Implementation Support (WSID-0325)

ADDENDA

Prospective bidders are responsible for reviewing any published addenda regarding this bid at ebmud.com/business-center

CONTACT

Grace W. Su, Senior Civil Engineer (510) 287-7013 grace.su@ebmud.com

RESPONSE DUE

June 10, 2025 4:00 p.m. PST

SUBMIT ELECTRONICALLY TO*

Grace W. Su, EBMUD grace.su@ebmud.com

SUBMIT BY MAIL TO

RESPONSE DELIVERED BY SERVICE (UPS, FedEx, DHL, etc., during	RESPONSE DELIVERED BY MAIL (U.S. Postal Service) to:	RESPONSE HAND-DELIVERED (during business hours: 8:00 AM –
business hours: 8:00 AM to 4:00		4:00 PM only)
PM only)		
	Grace W. Su	Grace W. Su
Grace W. Su	EBMUD – WSID Division (MS 407)	EBMUD – WSID Division (MS 407)
EBMUD – WSID Division (MS 407)	P.O. Box 24055	Purchasing Office
375 11 th Street	Oakland, CA 94623	375 11 [™] Street, 1 st Floor
Oakland, CA 94607		Oakland, CA 94607

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

RFP for East Bay Plain Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan Periodic Evaluation, Amendment and Implementation Support (WSID-0325)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I. STATEMENT OF WORK

- A. SCOPE
- B. PROPOSER QUALIFICATIONS
- C. DELIVERABLES / REPORTS

II. CALENDAR OF EVENTS

A. OPTIONAL PRE-PROPOSAL INFORMATION MEETING

III. DISTRICT PROCEDURES, TERMS, AND CONDITIONS

- A. RFP ACCEPTANCE AND AWARD
- B. EVALUATION CRITERIA/SELECTION COMMITTEE
- C. PRICING
- D. NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD AND PROTESTS
- E. INVOICING

IV. RFP RESPONSE SUBMITTAL INSTRUCTIONS AND INFORMATION

- A. DISTRICT CONTACTS
- B. SUBMITTAL OF RFP RESPONSE
- C. RESPONSE FORMAT

ATTACHMENTS

EXHIBIT A – RFP RESPONSE PACKET

EXHIBIT B – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

EXHIBIT C - CONSULTING AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

APPENDIX A – SCOPE OF SERVICES

APPENDIX B – COMPENSATION

APPENDIX C – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

APPENDIX D – CEP COMPLIANCE

EXHIBIT D – IRAN CONTRACTING ACT CERTIFICATION

EXHIBIT E – INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SECURITY INFORMATION TO BE EXCLUDED FROM PUBLIC RECORDS ACT REQUESTS

I. STATEMENT OF WORK

A. <u>SCOPE</u>

This Request for Proposal (RFP) is to provide support for the East Bay Plain (EBP) Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) Periodic Evaluation, Amendment, and implementation. The Periodic Evaluation and Amendment for the EBP Subbasin GSP will be submitted to the Department of Water Resources (DWR) for approval and must meet all requirements of the Sustainability Groundwater Management Act (SGMA). Exhibit A details the Scope of Work.

East Bay Municipal Utility District (District) intends to award a contract to the Proposer(s) who best meets the District's requirements.

B. <u>PROPOSER QUALIFICATIONS</u>

- 1. Proposer Minimum Qualifications
 - a. Proposer, Proposer's principal, or Proposer's staff shall have been regularly engaged in the business of providing consulting services for at least 10 years.
 - b. Proposer shall be a certified Hydrogeologist, registered engineering geologist, and/or registered civil engineer.
 - c. Proposer shall possess all permits, licenses, and professional credentials necessary to perform services as specified under this RFP.

C. <u>DELIVERABLES / REPORTS</u>

The Project deliverables are outlined in the following table:

Task	General Description	Deliverables
1.0	Stakeholders' Communication and Engagement (C&E) Support	 Progress update presentations Participate in stakeholder meetings Responses to stakeholder issues and concerns
2.0	Project Management	 Monthly invoices that include budget tracking updates Summary of the work completed during the billing period Schedule updates

3.0	EBP GSP Updates to Address DWR's Recommended Corrective Actions	 Address DWR's recommended corrective actions including those related to management of potential seawater intrusion into the groundwater basin and depletion of interconnected surface water Refine the sustainable management criteria (SMC) of the sustainability indicators Participate in meetings with DWR Incorporate updates into the Periodic Evaluation (Task 5.0) and GSP Amendment (Task 6.0)
4.0	EBP Subbasin GSP Implementation Activities Updates	 Re-evaluate the representative monitoring well network Incorporate implementation activities conducted to fill data gaps Further evaluate potential groundwater dependent ecosystems in coastal areas
5.0	EBP Subbasin GSP Periodic Evaluation Preparation	 Draft Periodic Evaluation Final Periodic Evaluation for Submittal to DWR
6.0	GSP Plan Amendment	 Draft red-lined GSP Amendment Final red-lined GSP Amendment Final GSP Amendment for adoption and submittal to DWR
7.0	GSP Annual Report Preparation Support	 Provide as-needed support to prepare the GSP Annual Reports for Water Years 2026 and 2027
8.0	Optional Task: East Bay Plain Subbasin Groundwater Model (EBPGWM) Updates	 Provide as needed updates to the existing EBPGWM to address the DWR recommended corrective actions and other necessary GSP updates
9.0	Optional Task: Shallow Monitoring Wells Installation Support	 Provide support including preparing specifications for the drilling, construction oversight, development of the monitoring wells, and supervising the drilling contractor

II. CALENDAR OF EVENTS

EVENT	DATE/LOCATION	
RFP Issued	May 13, 2025	
Optional Pre- proposal Information Meeting	May 28, 2025 @ 10 am	Virtual via MS-Teams (must register to attend)
Addendum to Announce Pre- Approved Equivalents (if necessary)		
Response Due	June 10, 2025 by 5:00 p.m.	
Oral Interview	Anticipated during week of June 23, 2025	
Anticipated Contract Start Date	August 29, 2025	

Note: All dates and times are subject to change by District.

Proposers are responsible for reviewing <u>https://www.ebmud.com/business-</u> <u>center/requests-proposal-rfps/</u> for any published addenda. Hard copies of addenda will not be mailed out.

A. OPTIONAL PRE-PROPOSAL INFORMATION MEETING via MS-TEAMS

- 1. <u>By May 27, 2025, all prospective meeting participants to RSVP to Joaquin Cruz</u> by phone at (510) 287-0968 or by email at joaquin.cruz@ebmud.com.
- 2. Allow EBMUD and the City of Hayward (Parties) to discuss the scope of the project, provide additional information and answer questions.
- 3. Provide an opportunity for Proposers to ask specific questions about the project and request RFP clarifications.
- 4. Provide Parties with an opportunity to receive feedback regarding the project and RFP.

All questions deemed to be pertinent by the District to all potential proposers will be addressed in Addenda following the information meeting.

III. DISTRICT PROCEDURES, TERMS, AND CONDITIONS

A. <u>RFP ACCEPTANCE AND AWARD</u>

 RFP responses will be evaluated by the Selection Committee and will be scored and ranked in accordance with the RFP section entitled "Evaluation Criteria/Selection Committee."

- 2. The Selection Committee will recommend award to the Proposer who, in its opinion, has submitted the RFP response that best serves the overall interests of the District. Award may not necessarily be made to the Proposer with the lowest overall cost.
- 3. The District reserves the right to award to a single or to multiple General or Professional Service Providers, dependent upon what is in the best interest of the District.
- 4. The District has the right to decline to award this contract or any part of it for any reason.
- 5. Any specifications, terms, or conditions issued by the District, or those included in the Proposer's submission, in relation to this RFP, may be incorporated into any purchase order or contract that may be awarded as a result of this RFP.
- 6. Award of contract. The District reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, to accept one part of a proposal and reject the other, unless the proposer stipulates to the contrary, and to waive minor technical defects and administrative errors, as the interest of the District may require. Award will be made, or proposals rejected by the District as soon as possible after proposals have been opened.

B. EVALUATION CRITERIA/SELECTION COMMITTEE

All proposals will be evaluated by a Selection Committee. The Selection Committee may be composed of District staff and other parties that have expertise or experience in this type of procurement. The Selection Committee will select a Proposer in accordance with the evaluation criteria set forth in this RFP. The evaluation of the RFP responses shall be within the sole judgment and discretion of the Selection Committee.

The Selection Committee will evaluate each RFP response meeting the qualification requirements set forth in this RFP. Proposer should bear in mind that any RFP response that is unrealistic in terms of the technical or schedule commitments, or unrealistically high or low in cost, will be deemed reflective of an inherent lack of technical competence or indicative of a failure to comprehend the complexity and risk of the District's requirements as set forth in this RFP.

RFP responses will be evaluated and scored according to the Evaluation Criteria below and scored according to a zero to five-point scale. The scores for all Evaluation Criteria will then be added to arrive at a weighted score for each RFP response. An RFP response with a high weighted total will be ranked higher than one with a lesser-weighted total.

A shortlist of proposers may be invited for an oral interview with the Selection Committee. The interview may consist of standard questions asked of each of the proposers and specific questions regarding the specific RFP response. If oral interviews are conducted, evaluation criteria specific to the oral interview process may be developed and considered in the final selection process.

The Evaluation Criteria are as follows:

A.	Understanding of the Project
А.	RFP responses will be evaluated against the RFP specifications and the questions below:1. Has the Proposer demonstrated a thorough understanding of the
	purpose and scope of the project?2. How well has the Proposer identified pertinent issues and potential problems related to the project?
	 3. Has the Proposer demonstrated that it understands the deliverables the District expects it to provide? 4. Has the Proposer demonstrated that it understands the District's time
	schedule and can meet it?
В.	Project Approach and Schedule An evaluation will be made of the likelihood that the Proposer's approach will be the most effective, and that the proposed work schedule will meet the project schedule and deadlines.
C.	Project Team Project teams will be evaluated to ensure they include essential and complementary skills to achieve best possible outcomes for the project.
D.	Technical, Communication and Management Knowledge, Skills and ExperienceProposals will be evaluated for proposers' technical skills, verbal and written communication skills, proven management acumen in working with multi-agency-coordinated projects in an intensive stakeholder communication and engagement environment, collective experience of project teams, outstanding qualifications and past experience of similar project scopes. RFP responses will also be evaluated against the RFP scope of work and questions such as:
	 Do the individuals assigned to the project have experience on similar projects? Do resumés demonstrate backgrounds that would be desirable for individuals engaged in the work that the project requires? How extensive is the applicable education and experience of the personnel designated to work on the project?

Ε.	References (see Exhibit A – Proposal Response Packet) References are contacted and checked only for those proposers who are invited for the oral interview.
F.	Reasonableness of Cost The points for Cost will be computed by dividing the amount of the lowest responsive RFP response received by each Proposer's total proposed cost.
	 While not reflected in the Cost evaluation points, an evaluation may also be made of: 1. Reasonableness (i.e., does the proposed pricing accurately reflect the Proposer's effort to meet requirements and objectives?); 2. Realism (i.e., is the proposed cost appropriate to the nature of the products and services to be provided?); and 3. Affordability (i.e., the ability of the District to finance this project). Consideration of price in terms of overall affordability may be controlling in circumstances where two or more RFP responses are otherwise judged to be equal, or when a superior RFP response is at a price that the District
	cannot afford.
G.	Oral Presentation and Interview The oral interview may consist of standard questions asked of each of the Proposers and specific questions regarding the specific RFP response.
н.	Contract Equity Program Proposer shall be eligible for SBE or DVBE preference points if they are a certified small business entity, as described in the guidelines contained in Exhibit A-Contract Equity Program, <u>and</u> they check the appropriate box, requesting preference, in Exhibit A-Proposer Information and Acceptance. Qualified DVBEs and/or SBEs will receive an additional 5 points to their total score.

C. <u>PRICING</u>

- 1. All prices quoted shall be in United States dollars.
- 2. Price quotes shall include any and all payment incentives available to the District.
- 3. Proposers are advised that in the evaluation of cost, if applicable, it will be assumed that the unit price quoted is correct in the case of a discrepancy between the unit price and extended price.

D. NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD AND PROTESTS

At the conclusion of the RFP response evaluation process, all entities who submitted a proposal package will be notified in writing by e-mail or USPS mail with the name of the Proposer being recommended for contract award. The document providing this notification is the Notice of Intent to Award.

Negotiations for a Consulting Services Agreement with a "not to exceed" contract price (for time and expenses) will be scheduled shortly after the Notice of Intent to Award. If an Agreement cannot be achieved, the District will proceed to negotiate with the next highest ranked Proposer.

Protests must be in writing and must be received no later than seven (7) workdays after the District issues the Notice of Intent to Award. The District will reject the protest as untimely if it is received after this specified time frame. Protests will be accepted from proposers or potential proposers only.

If the protest is mailed and not received by the District, the protesting party bears the burden of proof to submit evidence (e.g., certified mail receipt) that the protest was sent in a timely manner so that it would be received by the District within the RFP protest period.

Proposal protests must contain a detailed and complete written statement describing the reason(s) for protest. The protest must include the name and/or number of the proposal, the name of the firm protesting, and include a name, telephone number, email address and physical address of the protester. If a firm is representing the protester, they shall include their contact information in addition to that of the protesting firm.

Protests must be mailed, hand delivered, or emailed to the Manager of Purchasing, Mailstop 102, East Bay Municipal Utility District, 1010 Franklin St., Oakland, CA 94607 or P.O. Box 24055, Oakland, California 94623. Facsimile and electronic mail protests must be followed by a mailed or hand delivered identical copy of the protest and must arrive within the seven workday time limit. Any proposal protest filed with any other District office shall be forwarded immediately to the Manager of Purchasing.

In the event that the protest is denied, the protester can appeal the determination to the requesting organization's Department Director. The appeal must be submitted to the Department Director no later than five workdays from the date which the protest determination was transmitted by the District, to the protesting party. The appeal shall focus on the points raised in the original protest, and no new points shall be raised in the appeal. Such an appeal must be made in writing and must include all grounds for the appeal and copies of the original protest and the District's response. The proposal protester must also send the Purchasing Division a copy of all materials sent to the Department Director.

The Department Director will make a determination of the appeal and respond to the protester by certified mail in a timely manner. If the appeal is denied, the letter will include the date, time, and location of the Board of Directors meeting at which staff will make a recommendation for award and inform the protester it may request to address the Board of Directors at that meeting.

The District may transmit copies of the protest and any attached documentation to all other parties who may be affected by the outcome of the protest. The decision of the District as to the validity of any protest is final. This District's final decision will be transmitted to all affected parties in a timely manner.

E. <u>INVOICING</u>

- 1. Following the Districts acceptance of product(s) meeting all specified requirements, and/or the complete and satisfactory performance of services, the District will render payment within thirty (30) days of receipt of a correct invoice.
- 2. The District will notify the General or Professional Service Provider of any invoice adjustments required.
- 3. Invoices shall contain, at a minimum, District purchase order number, invoice number, remit to address, and itemized services description. When invoicing for rendered services, CONSULTANT shall prepare invoices by identifying completed tasks as per the workplan listed in the Scope of Work, which shall be an attachment to the Agreement.
- 4. The District will pay General or Professional Service Provider in an amount not to exceed the negotiated amount(s) which will be referenced in the agreement signed by both parties.

IV. RFP RESPONSE SUBMITTAL INSTRUCTIONS AND INFORMATION

A. DISTRICT CONTACTS

All contact during the competitive process is to be through the contact listed on the first page of this RFP. The following persons are to be contacted only for the purposes specified below:

FOR INFORMATION REGARDING TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS: Attn: Grace W. Su, Senior Civil Engineer EBMUD: Water Supply Improvement Division

E-Mail: grace.su@ebmud.com

PHONE: (510) 287-7013

FOR INFORMATION ON THE CONTRACT EQUITY PROGRAM:

Attn: Contract Equity Office

PHONE: (510) 287-0114

AFTER AWARD:

Attn:Beverly Johnson, Contract Equity AdministratorEBMUD:Contract Equity OfficeE-Mail:beverly.johnson@ebmud.comPHONE:(510) 287-0114

B. <u>SUBMITTAL OF RFP RESPONSE</u>

- For electronic submittals, upload your RFP response in pdf format and prior to the bid due date/time RFP submittals, in their entirety, shall be emailed to <u>grace.su@ebmud.com</u>. The District's email has limitations on attachment size. Make sure your response is less than 25 megabytes. If the file exceeds the limit, you will need to send multiple emails. Proposers are solely responsible for ensuring timely delivery of the proposals. The District shall not be responsible for any issues related to transfer of files through email. You may call (510) 287-7013 to check receipt of the proposal.
- 2. For hardcopies, submit proposals to:

RESPONSE DELIVERED BY SERVICE (UPS, FedEx, DHL, etc., during business hours: 8:00 AM to 4:00	RESPONSE DELIVERED BY MAIL (U.S. Postal Service) to:	RESPONSE HAND-DELIVERED (during business hours: 8:00 AM – 4:00 PM only)
PM only) Grace W. Su EBMUD – WSID Division (MS 407) 375 11 th Street Oakland, CA 94607	Grace W. Su EBMUD – WSID Division (MS 407) P.O. Box 24055 Oakland, CA 94623	Grace W. Su EBMUD – WSID Division (MS 407) Purchasing Office 375-11 TH Street, 1 st Floor Oakland, CA 94607

- 3. All costs required for the preparation and submission of an RFP response shall be borne by the Proposer.
- 4. California Government Code Section 4552: In submitting an RFP response to a public purchasing body, the Proposer offers and agrees that if the RFP response is accepted, it will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2, commencing with Section 16700, of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from

purchases of goods, materials, or services by the Proposer for sale to the purchasing body pursuant to the RFP response. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the Proposer.

- 5. Proposer expressly acknowledges that it is aware that if a false claim is knowingly submitted (as the terms "claim" and "knowingly" are defined in the California False Claims Act, Cal. Gov. Code, §12650 et seq.), the District will be entitled to civil remedies set forth in the California False Claim Act.
- 6. The RFP response shall remain open to acceptance and is irrevocable for a period of one hundred eighty (180) days, unless otherwise specified in the RFP documents.
- 7. It is understood that the District reserves the right to reject any or all RFP responses.

C. <u>RESPONSE FORMAT</u>

- 1. Proposers shall not modify the existing text for any part of Exhibits A, B, C, D, E, or F or qualify their RFP responses. Proposers shall not submit to the District a re-typed or otherwise re-created version of these documents or any other District-provided document.
- 2. RFP responses, in whole or in part, are NOT to be marked confidential or proprietary. The District may refuse to consider any RFP response or part thereof so marked. RFP responses submitted in response to this RFP may be subject to public disclosure. The District shall not be liable in any way for disclosure of any such records.



EXHIBIT A RFP RESPONSE PACKET

RFP For EBP Subbasin GSP Periodic Evaluation, Amendment, and Implementation Support (WSID-0325)

To: The EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY District ("District")

From:

(Official Name of Proposer)

RFP RESPONSE PACKET GUIDELINES

- SUBMITTAL SHALL CONTAIN THE FOLLOWING:
 - EXHIBIT A RFP RESPONSE PACKET
 - INCLUDING ALL REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION AS DESCRIBED IN "EXHIBIT A-REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION AND SUBMITTALS"
 - EXHIBIT B INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
 - EXHIBIT C CONSULTING AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
 - EXHIBIT D IRAN CONTRACTING ACT CERTIFICATION
 - EXHIBIT E INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SECURITY INFORMATION TO BE EXCLUDED FROM PUBLIC RECORDS ACT REQUESTS
- PROPOSERS THAT DO NOT COMPLY WITH THE REQUIREMENTS, AND/OR SUBMIT AN INCOMPLETE RFP RESPONSE MAY BE SUBJECT TO DISQUALIFICATION AND THEIR RFP RESPONSE REJECTED IN WHOLE.
- IF PROPOSERS ARE MAKING <u>ANY</u> CLARIFICATIONS AND/OR AMENDMENTS, OR TAKING EXCEPTION TO ANY PART OF THIS RFP, THESE <u>MUST</u> BE SUBMITTED IN THE EXCEPTIONS, CLARIFICATIONS, AND AMENDMENTS SECTION OF THIS EXHIBIT A – RFP RESPONSE PACKET. THE DISTRICT, AT ITS SOLE DISCRETION, MAY ACCEPT AMENDMENTS/EXCEPTIONS, OR MAY DEEM THEM TO BE UNACCEPTABLE, THEREBY RENDERING THE RFP RESPONSE DISQUALIFIED.
- PROPOSORS SHALL NOT MODIFY DISTRICT LANGUAGE IN ANY PART OF THIS RFP OR ITS EXHIBITS, NOR SHALL THEY QUALIFY THEIR RFP RESPONSE BY INSERTING THEIR OWN LANGUAGE OR FALSE CLAIMS IN THEIR RESPONSE. ANY EXCEPTIONS AND CLARIFICATIONS MUST BE PLACED IN THE "EXCEPTIONS/ CLARIFICATIONS" PAGE, NOT BURIED IN THE PROPOSAL ITSELF.



PROPOSER INFORMATION AND ACCEPTANCE

- 1. The undersigned declares that all RFP documents, including, without limitation, the RFP, Addenda, and Exhibits, have been read and that the terms, conditions, certifications, and requirements are agreed to.
- 2. The undersigned is authorized to offer, and agrees to furnish, the articles and services specified in accordance with the RFP documents.
- 3. The undersigned acknowledges acceptance of all addenda related to this RFP. List Addenda for this RFP on the line below:

Addendum #	Date

- 4. The undersigned hereby certifies to the District that all representations, certifications, and statements made by the Proposer, as set forth in this RFP Response Packet and attachments, are true and correct and are made under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of California.
- 5. The undersigned acknowledges that the Proposer is, and will be, in good standing in the State of California, with all the necessary licenses, permits, certifications, approvals, and authorizations necessary to perform all obligations in connection with this RFP and associated RFP documents.
- 6. It is the responsibility of each Proposer to be familiar with all of the specifications, terms, and conditions and, if applicable, the site condition. By the submission of an RFP response, the Proposer certifies that if awarded a contract it will make no claim against the District based upon ignorance of conditions or misunderstanding of the specifications.
- 7. Patent indemnity: General or Professional Service Providers who do business with the District shall hold the District, its Directors, officers, agents, and employees harmless from liability of any nature or kind, including cost and expenses, for infringement or use of any patent, copyright or other proprietary right, secret process, patented or unpatented invention, article, or appliance furnished or used in connection with the contract or purchase order.
- Insurance certificates are not required at the time of submission. However, by signing Exhibit A RFP Response Packet, the Proposer agrees to meet the minimum insurance requirements stated in the RFP. This documentation must be provided to the District prior to execution of an agreement by the District

and shall include an insurance certificate which meets the minimum insurance requirements, as stated in the RFP.

- 9. The undersigned acknowledges that RFP responses, in whole or in part, are NOT to be marked confidential or proprietary. The District may refuse to consider any RFP response or part thereof so marked. RFP responses submitted in response to this RFP may be subject to public disclosure. The District shall not be liable in any way for disclosure of any such records.
- 10. The undersigned Proposer hereby submits this RFP response and binds itself to the District. The RFP, subsequent Addenda, Proposers Response Packet, and any attachments, shall be used to form the basis of a Contract, which once executed shall take precedence.
- 11. The undersigned acknowledges <u>ONE</u> of the following (please check only one box)*:

Proposer is not an SBE nor a DVBE and is ineligible for any Proposal preference; OR

Proposer is an SBE or DVBE as described in the Contract Equity Program (CEP) and Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) Guidelines, <u>and</u> has completed the CEP and EEO forms at the hyperlink contained in the CEP and EEO section of this Exhibit A.

*If no box is checked it will be assumed that the Proposer is ineligible for Proposal preference, and none will be given. For additional information on SBE/DVBE Proposal preference please refer to the Contract Equity Program and Equal Employment Opportunity Guidelines at the above referenced hyperlink.

Official Name of Proposer (exactly as it appears on Proposer's corporate seal and invoice):

Street Address Line 1:			
Street Address Line 2:			
City:	State:	Zip Code:	
Webpage:			
Type of Entity / Organizational Structure (cl	neck one):		
Corporation	Joint	Venture	
Limited Liability Partnersh	ip 🗌 Partr	nership	
Limited Liability Corporati	on 🗌 Non-	Profit / Church	
Other:			
Jurisdiction of Organization Structure:			
Date of Organization Structure:			

ederal Tax Identification Number:			
Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) Registration Number:			
Primary Contact Information:			
Name / Title:			
Telephone Number:	Fax Nun	nber:	
E-mail Address:			
Street Address Line 1:			
City:	State:	Zip Code:	

Does proposer or any employee/representative/service provider have any relatives currently employed with EBMUD? (This does not impact award of a qualified proposal; required reporting purposes only.)

YES NO

If so, please list :

CONTRACTOR OR CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE FIRST AND LAST NAME	DISTRICT EMPLOYEE FIRST AND LAST NAME	RELATIONSHIP

SIGNATURE: _____

Name and Title of Signer (printed):

Dated this ______ day of ______ 20_____



PROPOSAL FORM

Cost shall be submitted on this Proposal Form as is. The prices quoted shall <u>not</u> include Sales Tax or Use Tax; said tax, wherever applicable, will be paid by the District to the General or Professional Service Provider, if licensed to collect, or otherwise directly to the State.

No alterations or changes of any kind to the Proposal Form(s) are permitted. RFP responses that do not comply may be subject to rejection in total. The cost quoted below shall be the cost the District will pay for the term of any contract that is a result of this RFP process.

QUANTITIES LISTED HEREIN ARE ANNUAL ESTIMATES BASED ON PAST USAGE AND ARE NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A COMMITMENT. NO MINIMUM OR MAXIMUM IS GUARANTEED OR IMPLIED. PROPOSER MAY LIST ALL PROFESSIONAL AND SUPPORT STAFF NECESSARY TO COMPLETE THE TASKS DESCRIBED IN THIS PROPOSAL. COSTS INCLUDING OVERHEAD SURCHARGE FOR SUBCONTRACTORS OR SUB-CONSULTANTS SHALL BE LISTED EXPLICITLY IN SIMILAR MANNER. THE EXAMPLE OF TABULATED COSTS FOR INVOICES IS INCLUDED IN THE STANDARD CONSULTING AGREEMENT'S EXHIBIT B-1 AND B-2.



REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION AND SUBMITTALS

All of the specific documentation listed below is required to be submitted with the Exhibit A – RFP Response Packet. Proposers shall submit all documentation, in the order listed below, and clearly label each section of the RFP response with the appropriate title (i.e., Table of Contents, Letter of Transmittal, Key Personnel, etc.).

- 1. <u>Letter of Transmittal</u>: RFP response shall include a description of the Proposer's capabilities and approach in providing its services to the District, and provide a brief synopsis of the highlights of the RFP response and overall benefits to the District. This synopsis should not exceed three (3) pages in length and should be easily understood.
- 2. <u>Key Personnel</u>: RFP response shall include a complete list of all key personnel associated with the RFP. This list must include all key personnel who will provide services/training to District staff and all key personnel who will provide maintenance and support services. For each person on the list, the following information shall be included:
 - (a) The person's relationship with the Proposer, including job title and years of employment with the Proposer;
 - (b) The role that the person will play in connection with the RFP;
 - (c) The person's telephone number, fax number, and e-mail address;
 - (d) The person's educational background; and
 - (e) The person's relevant experience, certifications, and/or merits
- 3. Description of the Proposed Analyses/Tools/Software and applications/data management system: RFP response shall include a description of the proposed Methods of Analyses/Tools/Software and applications/data management system, collectively referred to as "tools",, as it will be finally configured during the term of the contract. The description shall specify how the proposed tools will meet or exceed the requirements of the District and shall explain any advantages that this proposed tools would have over other possible equipment/systems. The description shall include any disadvantages or limitations that the District should be aware of in evaluating the RFP response. Finally, the description shall describe all product warranties provided by the Proposer.
- 4. **Description of the Proposed Services**: RFP response shall include a description of the terms and conditions of services to be provided during the contract term including response times. The description shall contain a basis of estimate for services including its scheduled start and completion dates, the number of Proposer's and District personnel involved, and the number of hours scheduled for each person. The description shall identify spare or replacement parts that will be required in performing maintenance services, the anticipated location(s) of the spare parts, and how quickly the parts shall be available for repairs. Finally, the description must: (1) specify how the services in the RFP response will meet or exceed the requirements of

the District; (2) explain any special resources or approaches that make the services of the Proposer particularly advantageous to the District; and (3) identify any limitations or restrictions of the Proposer in providing the services that the District should be aware of in evaluating its RFP response to this RFP.

- 5. **Implementation Plan and Schedule**: The RFP response shall include an implementation plan and schedule to complete the scope of work and required services. In addition, the plan shall include a detailed schedule indicating how the Proposer will ensure adherence to the updated EBP Subbasin GSP development schedule and identify the professionals who will perform the tasks.
- 6. **Sustainability Statement:** Contractors shall submit a statement regarding any sustainable, environmental or socially responsible initiatives or practices that they or their suppliers engage in. This information can be in relation to the specific services or work products solicited via this RFP, or in relation to the manufacture, delivery, or business practices of your firm.

7. <u>References</u>:

- (a) Proposers must use the templates in the "References" section of this Exhibit A RFP Response Packet to provide references.
- (b) References should have similar scope, volume, and requirements to those outlined in these specifications, terms, and conditions.
 - Proposers must verify the contact information for all references provided is current and valid.
 - Proposers are strongly encouraged to notify all references that the District may be contacting them to obtain a reference.
- (c) The District may contact some or all of the references provided in order to determine Proposer's performance record on work similar to that described in this RFP. The District reserves the right to contact references other than those provided in the RFP response and to use the information gained from them in the evaluation process.

8. **Exceptions, Clarifications, Amendments:**

(a) The RFP response shall include a separate section calling out all clarifications, exceptions, and amendments, if any, to the RFP and associated RFP documents, which shall be submitted with the proposer's RFP response using the template in the "Exceptions, Clarifications, Amendments" section of this Exhibit A – RFP Response Packet.

(b) THE DISTRICT IS UNDER NO OBLIGATION TO ACCEPT ANY EXCEPTIONS, AND SUCH EXCEPTIONS MAY BE A BASIS FOR RFP RESPONSE DISQUALIFICATION.

9. <u>Contract Equity Program</u>:

(a) Every proposer must fill out, sign, and submit the appropriate sections of the Contract Equity Program and Equal Employment Opportunity documents located at the hyperlink contained in the last page of this Exhibit A. Special attention should be given to completing Form P-25, "Employment Data and Certification". Any proposer needing assistance in completing these forms should contact the District's Contract Equity Office at (510) 287-0114 prior to submitting an RFP response.



REFERENCES

RFP For

RFP For East Bay Plain Groundwater Sustainability Plan Periodic Evaluation, Amendment, and Implementation Support (WSID-0325)

Proposer Name:

Proposer must provide a minimum of three (3) references.

Company Name:	Contact Person:
Address:	Telephone Number:
City, State, Zip:	E-mail Address:
Services Provided / Date(s) of Service:	

Company Name:	Contact Person:	
Address:	Telephone Number:	
City, State, Zip:	E-mail Address:	
Services Provided / Date(s) of Service:		

Company Name:	Contact Person:
Address:	Telephone Number:
City, State, Zip:	E-mail Address:
Services Provided / Date(s) of Service:	

Company Name:	Contact Person:
Address:	Telephone Number:
City, State, Zip:	E-mail Address:
Services Provided / Date(s) of Service:	

Company Name:	Contact Person:
Address:	Telephone Number:
City, State, Zip:	E-mail Address:
Services Provided / Date(s) of Service:	



EXCEPTIONS, CLARIFICATIONS, AMENDMENTS

RFP For East Bay Plain Groundwater Sustainability Plan Periodic Evaluation, Amendment, and Implementation Support (WSID-0325)

Proposer Name:_____

List below requests for clarifications, exceptions, and amendments, if any, to the RFP and associated RFP documents, and submit with your RFP response.

The District is under no obligation to accept any exceptions and such exceptions may be a basis for RFP response disqualification.

Reference to:):	Description	
Page No.	Section	Item No.		
p. 23	D	1.c.	Proposer takes exception to	

*Print additional pages as necessary



CONTRACT EQUITY PROGRAM & EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

The District's Board of Directors adopted the Contract Equity Program (CEP) to enhance equal opportunities for business owners of all races, ethnicities, and genders who are interested in doing business with the District. The program has contracting objectives, serving as the minimum level of expected contract participation for the three availability groups: white-men owned businesses, white-women owned businesses, and ethnic minority owned businesses. The contracting objectives apply to all contracts that are determined to have subcontracting opportunities, and to all General or Professional Service Providers regardless of their race, gender, or ethnicity.

All Contractors and their subcontractors performing work for the District must be Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) employers and shall be bound by all laws prohibiting discrimination in employment. There shall be no discrimination against any person, or group of persons, on account of race, color, religion, creed, national origin, ancestry, gender including gender identity or expression, age, marital or domestic partnership status, mental disability, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), medical condition (including genetic characteristics or cancer), genetic information, or sexual orientation.

Contractor and its subcontractors shall abide by the requirements of 41 CFR §§ 60-1.4(a), 60-300.5(a) and 60-741.5(a). These regulations prohibit discrimination against qualified individuals based on their status as protected veterans or individuals with disabilities and prohibit discrimination against all individuals based on their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin in the performance of this contract. Moreover, these regulations require that covered prime contractors and subcontractors take affirmative action to employ and advance in employment individuals without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, protected veteran status or disability.

All Contractors shall include the nondiscrimination provisions above in all subcontracts. Please include the required completed forms with your proposal. Non-compliance with the Guidelines may deem a proposal non-responsive, and therefore, ineligible for contract award. Your firm is responsible for:

- 1) Reading and understanding the CEP guidelines.
- 2) Filling out and submitting with your proposal the appropriate forms.

The CEP guidelines and forms can be downloaded from the District website at the following link: https://www.ebmud.com/business-center/contract-equity-program

If you have questions regarding the Contract Equity Program, please call (510) 287-0114.



EXHIBIT B INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

CONTRACTOR/COMPANY NAME:

PROPOSER shall take out and maintain during the life of the Agreement all insurance required and PROPOSER shall not commence work until such insurance has been approved by DISTRICT. The proof of insurance shall be on forms provided by DISTRICT directly following these Insurance Requirements.

PROPOSERS are not required to submit completed insurance verification documents with their bid but will be required to submit them upon notification of award. By signing Exhibit A - RFP Response Packet, the BIDDER agrees to meet the minimum insurance requirements stated in the RFP.

The following provisions are applicable to all required insurance:

- A. Prior to the beginning of and throughout the duration of Services, and for any additional period of time as specified below, CONTRACTOR shall, at its sole cost and expense, maintain insurance in conformance with the requirements set forth below.
- B. CONTRACTOR shall provide Verification of Insurance as required by this Agreement by providing the completed Verification of Insurance as requested below by signing and submitting Exhibit B ("Insurance Requirements") to the DISTRICT. The Insurance Requirements may be signed by the insurance broker or the insurance broker's agent (Insurance Broker/Agent) for the CONTRACTOR, or by an officer of the CONTRACTOR (Officer), or by the CONTRACTOR's risk manager (Risk Manager). The Notice to Proceed shall not be issued, and CONTRACTOR shall not commence Services until a signed Verification of Insurance evidencing the specific coverages and limits required by this Agreement has been received by the DISTRICT.
- C. CONTRACTOR shall carry and maintain the minimum insurance requirements as defined in this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall require any contractor/subcontractor to carry and maintain the minimum insurance required in this Agreement to the extent the insurance applies to the scope of the services to be performed by contractor/subcontractor.
- D. Receipt of a signed Verification of Insurance by the DISTRICT shall not relieve CONTRACTOR of any of the insurance requirements, nor decrease liability of CONTRACTOR.
- E. Insurance must be maintained, and an updated Verification of Insurance must be provided to the DISTRICT before the expiration of insurance by having the Insurance Broker/Agent, Officer, or Risk Manager update, sign and return the Insurance Requirements to the DISTRICT's contract manager. The updated Insurance Requirements shall become a part of the Agreement but shall not require a change order

to the Agreement. It is the CONTRACTOR's sole responsibility to provide or to ensure that an updated Verification of Insurance is provided to the DISTRICT. The DISTRICT has no obligation to solicit, remind, prompt, request, seek, or otherwise obtain any updated Verification of Insurance, and any actual or alleged failure on the part of the DISTRICT to obtain any updated Verification of Insurance under this Agreement shall not in any way be construed to be a waiver of any right or remedy of the DISTRICT, in this or any regard.

- F. The insurance required hereunder may be obtained by a combination of primary, excess and/or umbrella insurance, and all coverage shall be at least as broad as the requirements listed in this Agreement.
- G. Any deductibles, self-insurance, or self-insured retentions (SIRs) applicable to the required insurance coverage must be declared to and accepted by the DISTRICT.
- H. At the option and request of the DISTRICT, CONTRACTOR shall provide documentation of its financial ability to pay the deductible, self-insurance, or SIR.
- I. CONTRACTOR is responsible for the payment of any deductibles or SIRs pertaining to the policies required under this Agreement. In the event CONTRACTOR is unable to pay the required SIR, CONTRACTOR agrees that such SIR may be satisfied, in whole or in part, by the DISTRICT as the additional insured at the DISTRICT's sole and absolute discretion, unless to do so would terminate or void the policy(ies).
- J. Unless otherwise accepted by the DISTRICT, all required insurance must be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A-V.
- K. CONTRACTOR shall defend the DISTRICT and pay any damages as a result of failure to provide the waiver of subrogation from the insurance carrier required by this Agreement.
- L. For any coverage that is provided on a claims-made coverage form (which type of form is permitted only where specified), the retroactive date must be shown, must be before the date of this Agreement, and must be before the beginning of any Services related to this Agreement.
- M. For all claims-made policies the updated Verification of Insurance must be provided to the DISTRICT for at least three (3) years after expiration or termination of this Agreement.
- N. If claims-made coverage is canceled or is non-renewed and if the claims-made coverage is not replaced with another claims-made policy form with a retroactive date prior to the effective date of this Agreement and prior to the start of any Services related to this Agreement, CONTRACTOR must purchase an extended reporting period for a minimum of three (3) years after expiration or termination of the Agreement.
- O. In the event of a claim or suit, and upon request by the DISTRICT, CONTRACTOR agrees to provide a copy of the pertinent policy(ies) within 10 days of such request to the

DISTRICT for review. Any actual or alleged failure on the part of the DISTRICT to request a copy of the pertinent policy(ies) shall not in any way be construed to be a waiver of any right or remedy of the DISTRICT, in this or any regard. Additionally, the DISTRICT may, at any time during CONTRACTOR's performance under this Agreement, request a copy of the Declarations pages and Schedule of Forms and Endorsements of any policy required to be maintained by CONTRACTOR hereunder, whether or not a suit or claim has been filed. Premium details may be redacted from any such documents requested.

- P. The defense and indemnification obligations of this Agreement are undertaken in addition to, and shall not in any way be limited by, the insurance obligations contained herein.
- Q. Where additional insured coverage is required, the additional insured coverage shall be primary and non-contributory, and will not seek contribution from the DISTRICT's insurance or self-insurance.
- R. CONTRACTOR agrees to provide immediate Notice to the DISTRICT of any loss or claim against CONTRACTOR arising out of, pertaining to, or in any way relating to this Agreement or to Services performed under this Agreement. The DISTRICT assumes no obligation or liability by such Notice but has the right (but not the duty) to monitor the handling of any such claim(s) if the claim(s) is likely to involve the DISTRICT.
- S. It is the obligation of the CONTRACTOR to ensure all contractors/subcontractors performing services under this Agreement maintain the necessary coverages and limits. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all contractors/subcontractors agree to the same indemnity obligation that CONTRACTOR agrees to in this Agreement based on the nature and scope of services being performed by each contractor/subcontractor. CONTRACTOR shall require that each contractor/subcontractor include the DISTRICT, its directors, officers, and employees as additional insureds on its liability policy(ies) (excepting Professional Liability and Workers' Compensation) for all ongoing and completed operations with coverage as broad as required of CONTRACTOR under this Agreement. Failure or inability to secure fully adequate insurance shall in no way relieve the CONTRACTOR or all contractors/subcontractors of the responsibility for its own acts or the acts of any contractors/subcontractors or any employees or agents of either. All contractors/subcontractors are to waive subrogation against the DISTRICT on all policies. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for maintaining records evidencing contractors'/subcontractors' compliance with the necessary insurance coverages and limits, and such records shall be made available to the DISTRICT within 10 days upon request.
- T. It is CONTRACTOR's responsibility to ensure its compliance with the insurance requirements. Any actual or alleged failure on the part of the DISTRICT to obtain proof of insurance required under this Agreement shall not in any way be construed to be a waiver of any right or remedy of the DISTRICT, in this or any regard.

U. Notice of Cancellation/Non-Renewal/Material Reduction. The insurance requirements hereunder are mandatory, and the DISTRICT may, at its sole and absolute discretion, terminate the services provided by CONTRACTOR, should CONTRACTOR breach its obligations to maintain the required coverage and limits set forth in this Agreement. No coverage required hereunder shall be cancelled, non-renewed or materially reduced in coverage or limits without the DISTRICT being provided at least thirty (30) days prior written notice, other than cancellation for the non-payment of premiums, in which event the DISTRICT shall be provided ten (10) days prior written notice. Replacement of coverage with another policy or insurer, without any lapse in coverage or any reduction of the stated requirements does not require notice beyond submission to the DISTRICT of an updated Verification of Insurance which shall be met by having the Insurance Broker/ Agent, or Officer, or Risk Manager update, sign and return the Insurance Requirements.

I. Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance Coverage

A. Workers' Compensation insurance including Employer's Liability insurance with minimum limits as follows:

Coverage A.	Statutory Benefits Limits
Coverage B.	Employer's Liability of not less

overage B.	Employer's Liability of not less than:	
	Bodily Injury by accident:	\$1,000,000 each accident
	Bodily Injury by disease:	\$1,000,000 each employee
	Bodily Injury by disease:	\$1,000,000 policy limit

- B. If there is an onsite exposure of injury to CONTRACTOR, and/or contractor/subcontractor's employees under the U.S. Longshore and Harbor Workers' Compensation Act, the Jones Act, or under laws, regulations or statutes applicable to maritime employees, coverage is required for such injuries or claims.
- C. If CONTRACTOR is exempt from carrying Workers' Compensation Insurance, CONTRACTOR must return the completed Verification of Insurance confirming that CONTRACTOR has no employees and is exempt from the State of California Workers' Compensation requirements.
- D. If CONTRACTOR is self-insured with respect to Workers' Compensation coverage, CONTRACTOR shall provide to the DISTRICT a Certificate of Consent to Self-Insure from the California Department of Industrial Relations. Such self-insurance shall meet the minimum limit requirements and shall waive subrogation rights in favor of the DISTRICT as stated below in section "E."
- **E.** Waiver of Subrogation. Workers' Compensation policies, including any applicable excess and umbrella insurance, must contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement providing that CONTRACTOR and each insurer waive any and all rights of recovery by subrogation, or otherwise, against the DISTRICT, its directors, board, and committee members, officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers. CONTRACTOR shall defend and pay any

and all damages, fees, and costs, of any kind arising out of, pertaining to, or in any way relating to CONTRACTOR's failure to provide waiver of subrogation from the insurance carrier.

Verification of Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance Coverage

By checking the box and signing below, I hereby verify that the CONTRACTOR is exempt from the State of California's requirement to carry Workers' Compensation insurance.

As the CONTRACTOR's Insurance Broker/Agent, Officer, or Risk Manager, I hereby verify that I have reviewed and confirmed that the CONTRACTOR carries Workers' Compensation insurance as required by this Agreement, including the relevant provisions applicable to all required insurance.

Self-Insured Retention: Amount: \$
Policy Limit: \$
Policy Number:
Policy Period: fromto
Insurance Carrier Name:
Insurance Broker/Agent or Officer or Risk Manager - Print Name:
Insurance Broker/Agent or Officer or Risk Manager's Signature:

II. Commercial General Liability Insurance ("CGL") Coverage

- A. CONTRACTOR's insurance shall be primary, and any insurance or self-insurance procured or maintained by the DISTRICT shall not be required to contribute to it.
- B. The insurance requirements under this Agreement shall be the greater of (1) the minimum coverage and limits specified in this Agreement; or (2) the broader coverage and maximum limits of coverage of any insurance policies or proceeds available to the Named Insured. It is agreed that these insurance requirements shall not in any way act to reduce coverage that is broader or that includes higher limits than the minimums required herein. No representation is made that the minimum insurance requirements of this Agreement are sufficient to cover the obligations of the CONTRACTOR.
- C. Minimum Requirements. CGL insurance with minimum per occurrence and aggregate limits as follows:

Bodily Injury and Property Damage Personal Injury/Advertising Injury Products/Completed Operations \$2,000,000 per occurrence & aggregate \$2,000,000 per occurrence & aggregate \$2,000,000 per occurrence & aggregate

- D. Coverage must be on an occurrence basis and be as broad as Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CG 00 01.
- E. Coverage for Products, and Completed Operations, and Ongoing Operations must be included in the insurance policies and shall not contain any "prior work" coverage limitation or exclusion applicable to any Services performed by CONTRACTOR and/or contractor/subcontractor under this Agreement.
- F. There will be no exclusion for explosions, collapse, or underground liability (XCU).
- G. Insurance policies and Additional Insured Endorsement(s) shall not exclude liability and damages to work arising out of, pertaining to, or in any way relating to services performed by contractor/subcontractor on CONTRACTOR's behalf.
- H. Contractual liability coverage shall be included and shall not limit, by any modification or endorsement, coverage for liabilities assumed by CONTRACTOR under this Agreement as an "insured contract."
- I. Waiver of Subrogation. The policy shall be endorsed to include a Waiver of Subrogation ensuring that the CONTRACTOR and its insurer(s) waive any rights of recovery by subrogation, or otherwise, against the DISTRICT, its directors, board, and committee members, officers, officials, agents, volunteers, and employees. CONTRACTOR shall defend and pay any and all damages, fees, and costs, of any kind, arising out of, pertaining to, or in any way resulting from CONTRACTOR's failure to provide the waiver of subrogation from its insurance carrier(s).
- J. Independent Contractor's Liability shall not limit coverage for liability and/or damages arising out of, pertaining to, or in any way resulting from Services provided under this Agreement.
- K. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the DISTRICT, its directors, board, and committee members, officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers must be covered as Additional Insureds on a primary and noncontributory basis on all underlying, excess and umbrella policies that shall be evidenced in each case by an endorsement. Coverage for the Additional Insureds must be as broad as ISO forms CG 20 10 (ongoing operations) and CG 20 37 (completed operations) for liability arising in whole, or in part, from work performed by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR, or in any way related to Services performed under this Agreement.
- L. A severability of interest provision must apply for all the Additional Insureds, ensuring that CONTRACTOR's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom a claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the policies' limit(s).

Verification of Commercial General Liability (CGL) Insurance Coverage

As the CONTRACTOR'S Insurance Broker/Agent, Officer, or Risk Manager, I hereby verify that I have reviewed and confirmed that the CONTRACTOR carries Commercial General Liability insurance, as required by this Agreement, including the relevant provisions applicable to all required insurance:

Self-Insured Retention: Amount: \$	
Policy Limit:	
Policy Number:	
Policy Period: from	to
Insurance Carrier Name:	
Insurance Broker/Agent or Officer or R	isk Manager - Print Name:
Insurance Broker/Agent or Officer or R	isk Manager's Signature:

III. Business Auto Liability Insurance Coverage

- A. CONTRACTOR's insurance shall be primary, and any insurance or self-insurance procured or maintained by the DISTRICT shall not be required to contribute to it.
- B. The insurance requirements under this Agreement shall be the greater of (1) the minimum coverage and limits specified in this Agreement; or (2) the broader coverage and maximum limits of coverage of any insurance policies or proceeds available to the Named Insured. It is agreed that these insurance requirements shall not in any way act to reduce coverage that is broader or that includes higher limits than the minimums required herein. No representation is made that the minimum insurance requirements of this Agreement are sufficient to cover the obligations of the CONTRACTOR.
- C. Minimum Requirements. Auto insurance with minimum coverage and limits as follows: Each Occurrence Limit (per accident) and in the Aggregate: \$2,000,000 Bodily Injury and Property Damage: \$2,000,000
- D. Coverage must include either "owned, non-owned, and hired" autos or "any" automobile. This provision ensures the policy covers losses arising out of use of company-owned vehicles ("owned autos"), employee's personal autos ("non-owned autos" meaning not owned by company/insured) or autos that are rented or leased ("hired autos").
- E. If CONTRACTOR is transporting hazardous materials or contaminants, evidence of the Motor Carrier Act Endorsement-hazardous materials clean-up (MCS-90, or its equivalent) must be provided.

- F. If CONTRACTOR's Scope of Services under this Agreement exposes a potential pollution liability risk related to transport of potential pollutants, seepage, release, escape or discharge of any nature (threatened or actual) of pollutants into the environment arising out of, pertaining to, or in any way related to CONTRACTOR's and/or contractor's/subcontractor's performance under this Agreement, then Auto Liability Insurance policies must be endorsed to include Transportation Pollution Liability insurance. Alternatively, coverage may be provided under the CONTRACTOR's Pollution Liability Policies if such policy has no exclusions that would restrict coverage under this Agreement. Coverage shall also include leakage of fuel or other "pollutants" needed for the normal functioning of covered autos.
- G. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the DISTRICT, its directors, board, and committee members, officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers must be covered as Additional Insureds on a primary and noncontributory basis on all underlying and excess and umbrella policies.
- H. A severability of interest provision must apply for all the Additional Insureds, ensuring that CONTRACTOR's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom a claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the insurer's limits of liability.

Verification of Business Auto Liability Insurance Coverage

As the CONTRACTOR'S Insurance Broker/Agent, Officer, or Risk Manager, I hereby verify that I have reviewed and confirmed that the CONTRACTOR carries Business Automobile Liability insurance, as required by this Agreement, including the relevant provisions applicable to all required insurance:

Self-Insured Retention: Amount: \$	
Policy Limit: \$	
Policy Number:	
	to
Insurance Carrier Name:	
	k Manager – Print Name:
Insurance Broker/Agent or Officer or Ris	

IV. Professional Liability (also known as Errors and Omissions) Insurance Coverage

A. The insurance requirements under this Agreement shall be the greater of (1) the minimum coverage and limits specified in this Agreement; or (2) the broader coverage and maximum limits of coverage of any insurance policies or proceeds available to the Named Insured. It is agreed that these insurance requirements shall not in any way act to reduce coverage that is broader or that includes higher limits than the minimums required herein. No representation

is made that the minimum insurance requirements of this Agreement are sufficient to cover the obligations of the CONTRACTOR.

B. Minimum Requirements: Professional Liability Insurance with minimum limits as follows: Each Claim: \$2,000,000 Aggregate Limit: \$2,000,000

If Coverage is written on a claims-made form, the following shall apply:

- 1. The retroactive date must be shown and must be before the date of the Agreement or the beginning of the Services.
- 2. Insurance must be maintained, and evidence of insurance must be provided for a minimum of three (3) years after completion of the Services.
- 3. If claims-made coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policies form with a retroactive date prior to the effective date of the Agreement, CONTRACTOR must purchase an extended reporting period for a minimum of three (3) years after completion of the Services.

C. Insurance shall include prior acts coverage sufficient to cover the services under this Agreement.

Verification of Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) Insurance Coverage

As the CONTRACTOR'S Insurance Broker/Agent, Officer, or Risk Manager, I hereby verify that I have reviewed and confirmed that the CONTRACTOR carries Professional Liability insurance as required by this Agreement, including the relevant provisions applicable to all required insurance.

Self-Insured Retention: Amount: \$		
Policy Limit: \$		
Policy Number:		
Policy Period: from	to	
Insurance Carrier Name:		
Insurance Broker/Agent or Officer or Ris	k Manager- Print Nae:	

Insurance Broker/Agent or Officer or Risk Manager's Signature:

V. Pollution Liability Insurance Coverage

A. CONTRACTOR's insurance shall be primary, and any insurance or self-insurance procured or maintained by the DISTRICT shall not be required to contribute to it.

- B. The insurance requirements under this Agreement shall be the greater of (1) the minimum coverage and limits specified in this Agreement; or (2) the broader coverage and maximum limits of coverage of any insurance policies or proceeds available to the Named Insured. It is agreed that these insurance requirements shall not in any way act to reduce coverage that is broader or that includes higher limits than the minimums required herein. No representation is made that the minimum insurance requirements of this Agreement are sufficient to cover the obligations of the CONTRACTOR.
- C. Minimum Requirements: Pollution Liability Insurance with minimum limits, as follows:

Each Claim or Occurrence Limit:	\$2,000,000
Aggregate Limit:	\$2,000,000

- D. Coverage must be included for bodily injury and property damage, including coverage for loss of use and/or diminution in property value, and for clean-up costs arising out of, pertaining to, or in any way related to the actual, alleged or threatened discharge, dispersal, seepage, migration, release or escape of contaminants or pollutants, arising out of, pertaining to, or in any way resulting from any Services performed by CONTRACTOR under this Agreement; including any transportation of hazardous wastes, hazardous materials, or contaminants.
- E. If Coverage is written on a claims-made form, the following shall apply:
 - 1. The retroactive date must be shown and must be before the date of the Agreement or the beginning of the Services.
 - 2. Insurance must be maintained, and evidence of insurance must be provided for a minimum of three (3) years after completion of the Services.
 - 3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form with a retroactive date prior to the effective date of the Agreement, CONTRACTOR must purchase an extended reporting period for a minimum of three (3) years after completion of the Services.
- F. Insurance written on a claims-made basis shall include prior acts coverage sufficient to cover the services provided by CONTRACTOR under this Agreement.

Verification of Pollution Liability Insurance Coverage

As the CONTRACTOR'S Insurance Broker/Agent, Officer, or Risk Manager, I hereby verify that I have reviewed and confirmed that the CONTRACTOR carries Pollution Liability insurance, as required by this Agreement, including the relevant provisions applicable to all required insurance.

Self-Insured Retention: Amount: \$_____

Policy Limit: \$_____

Policy Number:		
Policy Period: from	to	
Insurance Carrier Name:		
Insurance Broker/Agent or Officer or	Risk Manager - Print Name:	
Insurance Broker/Agent or Officer or	Risk Manager's Signature:	

VI. Excess and/or Umbrella Liability Insurance Coverage (*Optional* – See Paragraph A below)

- A. The insurance requirements set forth above may be satisfied by a combination of primary and excess or umbrella policies. Where excess or umbrella policies are used the following shall apply:
- B. CONTRACTOR's insurance shall be primary, and any insurance or self-insurance procured or maintained by the DISTRICT shall not be required to contribute to it.
- C. The insurance requirements under this Agreement shall be the greater of (1) the minimum coverage and limits specified in this Agreement; or (2) the broader coverage and maximum limits of coverage of any insurance policies or proceeds available to the Named Insured. It is agreed that these insurance requirements shall not in any way act to reduce coverage that is broader or that includes higher limits than the minimums required herein. No representation is made that the minimum insurance requirements of this Agreement are sufficient to cover the obligations of the CONTRACTOR.
- D. Minimum Requirements: It is expressly understood by the parties that CONTRACTOR's Excess and/or Umbrella Liability policies shall, at minimum, comply with all insurance requirements set forth within this Agreement, and shall be at least as broad as coverage required of the underlying policies required herein.
 - 1. Coverage for Products, Completed Operations, and Ongoing Operations must be included in the insurance policies and shall not contain any "prior work" coverage limitation or exclusion applicable to any Services performed under this Agreement and, if it is a claimsmade policy, it must be maintained for a minimum of three (3) years following final completion of the Services.
 - 2. There will be no exclusion for explosions, collapse, or underground damage (XCU).
 - 3. Insurance policies and Additional Insured Endorsements shall not exclude coverage for liability and damages from services performed by contractor/subcontractor on CONTRACTOR's behalf.

- 4. Contractual liability coverage shall be included and shall not limit, by any modification or endorsement, coverage for liabilities assumed by CONTRACTOR under this Agreement as an "insured contract."
- 5. Independent Contractor's Liability shall not limit coverage for liability and/or damage arising out of, pertaining to, or in any way related to Services provided under this Agreement.
- 6. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the DISTRICT, its directors, officers, officials, agents, volunteers, and employees must be covered as Additional Insureds on a primary and noncontributory basis on all excess and umbrella policies. The Additional Insureds must be covered for liability arising in whole or in part from any premises, Products, Ongoing Operations, and Completed Operations by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR, in any way related to Services performed under this Agreement.
- 7. A severability of interest provision must apply for all the Additional Insureds, ensuring that the CONTRACTOR's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom a claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the policy's limits.
- 8. CONTRACTOR and its excess and/or umbrella Liability insurance coverage must waive any rights of subrogation against the DISTRICT, its directors, officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers, and CONTRACTOR shall defend and pay any damages as a result of failure to provide the waiver of subrogation from the insurance carrier(s).

Verification of Excess and/or Umbrella Liability Insurance Coverage

As the CONTRACTOR'S Insurance Broker/Agent, Officer, or Risk Manager, I hereby verify that I have reviewed and confirmed that the CONTRACTOR carries Excess and/or Umbrella Liability insurance, as required by this Agreement, including the relevant provisions applicable to all required insurance.

Excess/Umbrella Limits: Amount \$	
Policy Limit: \$	
Policy Number:	
Policy Period fromto	
Insurance Carrier Name:	
Underlying Policy(ies) listed above to which Excess/Umbrella applies:	
Insurance Broker/Agent or Officer or Risk Manager - Print Name:	

Insurance Broker/Agent or Officer or Risk Manager's Signature:

EXHIBIT C

CONSULTING AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

CONSULTING AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

EAST BAY PLAIN SUBBASIN GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY PLAN PERIODIC EVALUATION, AMENDMENT, AND IMPLEMENTATION SUPPORT (WSID-0325)

THIS Agreement is made and entered into this _____ day of *(month)*, 202_, by and between EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT, a public entity, hereinafter called "DISTRICT," and *(CONTRACTOR'S FULL LEGAL NAME, BOLD, ALL CAPS followed by type of entity [corporation, etc.])*, hereinafter called "CONSULTANT."

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, DISTRICT requires consulting services for East Bay Plain (EBP) Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) Periodic Evaluation, Amendment, and Implementation Support Project (WSID-0325); and

WHEREAS, DISTRICT and City of Hayward are each a Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) and are the exclusive GSAs for the entire portion of the EBP Subbasin within their respective adopted GSA boundaries;

WHEREAS, DISTRICT and the City of Hayward entered into a Cooperating Agreement in June 2018 for development of a GSP for the EBP Subbasin;

WHEREAS, the GSP was completed and adopted by the City of Hayward and DISTRICT Boards on December 7 and 14, 2021 respectively, and the GSAs submitted the GSP to DWR on January 26, 2022;

WHEREAS, DISTRICT and the City of Hayward entered into an Implementation Agreement for implementation of EBP Subbasin GSP in November 2022;

WHEREAS, the Department of Water Resources approved the EBP Subbasin GSP in July 2023;

WHEREAS, DISTRICT must comply with Department of Water Resources requirements under the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act for a periodic evaluation of the EBP Subbasin GSP every five (5) years; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT has submitted a proposal to provide consulting services for the preparation of planning documents for the EBP Subbasin GSP Periodic Evaluation, Amendment,
and Implementation Support (WSID-0325) and CONSULTANT represents that it has the experience, licenses, qualifications, staff expertise and where necessary the required Department of Industrial Relations ("DIR") registration to perform said services in a professional and competent manner; and

WHEREAS, DISTRICT Board of Directors has authorized the contract by Motion Number _____;

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed by DISTRICT and CONSULTANT that for the considerations hereinafter set forth, CONSULTANT shall provide said services to DISTRICT, as set forth in greater detail herein.

ARTICLE 1 - SCOPE OF WORK

- 1.1. CONSULTANT agrees to furnish services set forth in Appendix A, Scope of Services, attached hereto and incorporated herein. The services authorized under this Agreement shall also include all reports, manuals, plans, and specifications as set forth in Appendix A.
- 1.2. It is understood and agreed that CONSULTANT has the professional skills necessary to perform the work agreed to be performed under this Agreement, that DISTRICT relies upon the professional skills of CONSULTANT to do and perform CONSULTANT's work in a skillful and professional manner, and CONSULTANT thus agrees to so perform the work. CONSULTANT represents that it has all the necessary licenses to perform the work and shall maintain them during the term of this Agreement. CONSULTANT agrees that the work performed under this Agreement shall follow practices usual and customary to the groundwater sustainability plan preparation/update profession and that CONSULTANT is the engineer/scientist/hydrogeologist/engineering geologist in responsible charge of the work for all activities performed under this Agreement does not operate as a release of CONSULTANT from such professional responsibility for the work performed.
- 1.3. CONSULTANT agrees to maintain in confidence and not disclose to any person or entity, without DISTRICT's prior written consent, any trade secret or confidential information, knowledge or data relating to the products, process, or operation of DISTRICT. CONSULTANT further agrees to maintain in confidence and not to disclose to any person or entity, any data, information, technology, or material developed or obtained by CONSULTANT during the term of this Agreement. The covenants contained in this paragraph shall survive the termination of this Agreement for whatever cause.
- 1.4. The originals of all computations, drawings, designs, graphics, studies, reports, manuals, photographs, videotapes, data, computer files, and other documents prepared or caused to be prepared by CONSULTANT or its subcontractors in connection with these services shall be delivered to and shall become the exclusive property of DISTRICT. DISTRICT is licensed to utilize these documents for DISTRICT applications on other projects or extensions of this project, at its own risk. CONSULTANT and its subcontractors may retain and use copies of such documents, with written approval of DISTRICT.
- 1.5. CONSULTANT is an independent contractor and not an employee of DISTRICT. CONSULTANT expressly warrants that it will not represent that it is an employee or servant of DISTRICT.
- 1.6. CONSULTANT is retained to render professional services only and all payments made are compensation solely for such services as it may render and recommendations it may make in carrying out the work.

- 1.7. It is further understood and agreed by the parties hereto that CONSULTANT in the performance of its obligations hereunder is subject to the control or direction of DISTRICT as to the designation of tasks to be performed, the results to be accomplished by the services hereunder agreed to be rendered and performed, and not the means, methods, or sequence used by CONSULTANT for accomplishing the results.
- 1.8. If, in the performance of this agreement, any third persons are employed by CONSULTANT, such person shall be entirely and exclusively under the direction, supervision, and control of CONSULTANT. All terms of employment, including hours, wages, working conditions, discipline, hiring, and discharging, or any other terms of employment or requirements of law, shall be determined by CONSULTANT, and DISTRICT shall have no right or authority over such persons or the terms of such employment.
- 1.9. It is further understood and agreed that as an independent contractor and not an employee of DISTRICT, neither CONSULTANT nor CONSULTANT's assigned personnel shall have any entitlement as a DISTRICT employee, right to act on behalf of DISTRICT in any capacity whatsoever as agent, nor to bind DISTRICT to any obligation whatsoever. CONSULTANT shall not be covered by DISTRICT's worker's compensation insurance; nor shall CONSULTANT be entitled to compensated sick leave, vacation leave, retirement entitlement, participation in group health, dental, life or other insurance programs, or entitled to other fringe benefits payable by DISTRICT to employees of DISTRICT.

ARTICLE 2 - COMPENSATION

- 2.1. For the Scope of Services described in Appendix A, DISTRICT agrees to pay CONSULTANT actual costs incurred, subject to a Maximum Cost Ceiling of \$ *(insert dollars)*. Compensation for services shall be in accordance with the method and amounts described in Appendix B, attached hereto and incorporated herein. CONSULTANT acknowledges that construction work on public works projects requires DIR registration and is subject to prevailing wage rates and includes work performed during the design and preconstruction phases of construction including, but not limited to, inspection and land surveying work. CONSULTANT certifies that the proposed cost and pricing data used herein reflect the payment of prevailing wage rates where applicable and are complete, current, and accurate.
- 2.2. In case of changes affecting project scope resulting from new findings, unanticipated conditions, or other conflicts or discrepancies, CONSULTANT shall promptly notify DISTRICT of the identified changes and advise DISTRICT of the recommended solution. Work shall not be performed on such changes without prior written authorization of DISTRICT.

ARTICLE 3 - NOTICE TO PROCEED

3.1. This Agreement shall become effective upon execution of the second signature. CONSULTANT shall commence work upon receipt of DISTRICT's Notice to Proceed, which shall be in the form of a letter signed by DISTRICT's Project Manager. DISTRICT's Notice to Proceed will authorize the Contracted Services described in Appendix A with ceiling prices described in ARTICLE 2 - COMPENSATION. No work shall commence until the Notice to Proceed is issued.

3.2. DISTRICT may at its option issue a Notice to Proceed for some or all of the Optional Services tasks described in Exhibit A. Compensation for Optional Services shall be in accordance with the method and amounts described in Exhibit B.

ARTICLE 4 - TERMINATION

- 4.1. This Agreement may be terminated by DISTRICT immediately for cause or upon 10 days written notice, without cause, during the performance of the work.
- 4.2. If this Agreement is terminated CONSULTANT shall be entitled to compensation for services satisfactorily performed to the effective date of termination; provided however, that DISTRICT may condition payment of such compensation upon CONSULTANT's delivery to DISTRICT of any and all documents, photographs, computer software, videotapes, and other materials provided to CONSULTANT or prepared by CONSULTANT for DISTRICT in connection with this Agreement. Payment by DISTRICT for the services satisfactorily performed to the effective date of termination, shall be the sole and exclusive remedy to which CONSULTANT is entitled in the event of termination of this Agreement and CONSULTANT shall be entitled to no other compensation or damages and expressly waives same. Termination under this ARTICLE 4 TERMINATION shall not relieve CONSULTANT of any warranty obligations or the obligations under 1.4 and 7.1.
- 4.3. This Agreement may be terminated by CONSULTANT upon 10 days written notice to DISTRICT only in the event of substantial failure by DISTRICT to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement through no fault of CONSULTANT.

ARTICLE 5 - PROJECT MANAGERS

- 5.1. DISTRICT designates Grace W. Su as its Project Manager, who shall be responsible for administering and interpreting the terms and conditions of this Agreement, for matters relating to CONSULTANT's performance under this Agreement, and for liaison and coordination between DISTRICT and CONSULTANT. CONSULTANT may be requested to assist in such coordinating activities as necessary as part of the services. In the event DISTRICT wishes to make a change in DISTRICT's representative, DISTRICT will notify CONSULTANT of the change in writing.
- 5.2. CONSULTANT designates *(insert CONTRACTOR Project Manager's name)* as its Project Manager, who shall have immediate responsibility for the performance of the work and for all matters relating to performance under this Agreement. Any change in

CONSULTANT's designated personnel or subcontractor shall be subject to approval by the DISTRICT Project Manager.

ARTICLE 6 - CONTRACT EQUITY PROGRAM COMPLIANCE

- 6.1. CONSULTANT expressly agrees that this Agreement is subject to DISTRICT's Contract Equity Program ("CEP"). CONSULTANT is familiar with the DISTRICT's CEP and Equal Opportunity Guidelines and has read and understood all of the program requirements. CONSULTANT understands and agrees to comply with the CEP and all requirements therein, including each of the Good Faith Efforts. CONSULTANT further understands and agrees that non-compliance with the CEP requirements may result in termination of this Agreement.
- 6.2. Designated CEP compliance for the duration of this Agreement is listed in Appendix D, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein. CONSULTANT shall maintain records of the total amount actually paid to each subcontractor. Any change of CONSULTANT's listed subcontractors shall be subject to approval by DISTRICT's Project Manager.

ARTICLE 7 - INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE

7.1. Indemnification

CONSULTANT expressly agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless DISTRICT and its Directors, officers, agents and employees from and against any and all loss, liability, expenses, claims, suits, and damages, including attorneys' fees, arising out of or pertaining to, or relating to CONSULTANT's, its associates', employees', subcontractors', or other agents' negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct in the operation and/or performance under this Agreement.

Where applicable by law, the duty to indemnify, including the cost to defend is limited in accordance with California Civil Code § 2782.8.

7.2. Insurance Requirements

Insurance Requirements are as stated in Appendix C, Insurance Requirements.

ARTICLE 8 - NOTICES

Any notice which DISTRICT may desire or is required at any time to give or serve CONSULTANT may be delivered personally, or be sent by United States mail, postage prepaid, addressed to:

(insert consulting firm's name) (insert address) Attention: (insert contact, usually the Contractor's project manager),

or at such other address as shall have been last furnished in writing by CONSULTANT to DISTRICT.

Any notice which CONSULTANT may desire or is required at any time to give or serve upon DISTRICT may be delivered personally at EBMUD, 375 11th Street, Oakland, CA 94607-4240, or be sent by United States mail, postage prepaid, addressed to:

Director of Water and Natural Resources Department P.O. Box 24055 Oakland, CA 94623-1055 Email: *(insert e-mail address)*

or at such other address as shall have been last furnished in writing by DISTRICT to CONSULTANT.

Such personal delivery or mailing in such manner shall constitute a good, sufficient and lawful notice and service thereof in all such cases.

ARTICLE 9 - MISCELLANEOUS

- 9.1. This Agreement represents the entire understanding of DISTRICT and CONSULTANT as to those matters contained herein. No prior oral or written understanding shall be of any force or effect with respect to those matters covered hereunder. This Agreement may only be modified by amendment in writing signed by each party.
- 9.2. This Agreement is to be binding on the successors and assigns of the parties hereto. The services called for herein are deemed unique and CONSULTANT shall not assign, transfer or otherwise substitute its interest in this Agreement or any of its obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of DISTRICT.
- 9.3. Should any part of this Agreement be declared by a final decision by a court or tribunal of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional, invalid or beyond the authority of either party to enter into or carry out, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this Agreement, which shall continue in full force and effect, provided that the remainder of this Agreement can be interpreted to give effect to the intentions of the parties.
- 9.4. Multiple copies of this Agreement may be executed by the parties and the parties agree that the Agreement on file at the DISTRICT is the version of the Agreement that shall take precedence should any differences exist among counterparts of the Agreement.
- 9.5. This Agreement and all matters relating to it shall be governed by the laws of the State of California.
- 9.6. DISTRICT's waiver of the performance of any covenant, condition, obligation, representation, warranty or promise in this Agreement shall not invalidate this Agreement or be deemed a waiver of any other covenant, condition, obligation, representation,

warranty or promise. DISTRICT's waiver of the time for performing any act or condition hereunder does not constitute a waiver of the act or condition itself.

9.7. There shall be no discrimination in the performance of this Agreement, against any person, or group of persons, on account of race, color, religion, creed, national origin, ancestry, gender including gender identity or expression, age, marital or domestic partnership status, mental disability, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), medical condition (including genetic characteristics or cancer), veteran or military status, family or medical leave status, genetic information, or sexual orientation. CONSULTANT shall not establish or permit any such practice(s) of discrimination with reference to the Agreement or any part. Any violation of this section shall be deemed to be in material breach of this Agreement.

Consultant shall abide by the requirements of 41 CFR §§ 60-1.4(a), 60-300.5(a) and 60-741.5(a). These regulations prohibit discrimination against qualified individuals based on their status as protected veterans or individuals with disabilities, and prohibit discrimination against all individuals based on their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin in the performance of this contract. Moreover, these regulations require that covered prime consultants and subcontractors take affirmative action to employ and advance in employment individuals without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, protected veteran status or disability.

CONSULTANT shall include the nondiscrimination provisions above in all subcontracts.

9.8. CONSULTANT affirms that it does not have any financial interest or conflict of interest that would prevent CONSULTANT from providing unbiased, impartial service to DISTRICT under this Agreement.

ARTICLE 10 - TERM

Unless terminated pursuant to ARTICLE 4 - TERMINATION herein, this Agreement shall expire when all tasks have been completed and final payment has been made by DISTRICT.

(NOTE: do not have a page break leaving signatures by themselves—must have at least the *"in witness whereof" paragraph on signature page)*

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto each herewith subscribe the same in duplicate.

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

By: _____

Date

(Name). (Insert title - Director of Engineering and Construction or Manager of Support Services)

Approved As To Form

By:_______ for the Office of General Counsel

(CONSULTING FIRM'S NAME, ALL CAPS & BOLD)

(Title)

Date

Rev. 3/5/2024

APPENDIX A SCOPE OF SERVICES

East Bay Municipal Utility District East Bay Plain Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan Amendment, Periodic Evaluation, and Implementation Support (WSID-0325)

SCOPE OF SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

The East Bay Plain (EBP) Subbasin (Basin No. 2-009.04) is one of four subbasins that comprise the larger Santa Clara groundwater basin. The EBP Subbasin is overlaid by the East Bay Municipal Utility District (EBMUD) service area and a portion of the City of Hayward (Hayward). It is bounded by the Hayward Fault Zone in the east and the San Francisco Bay in the north and the west. In the south, it is located adjacent to the Niles Cones Subbasin (Basin No. 2-009.01). EBMUD and Hayward are the exclusive Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs) covering the entire EBP Subbasin for their respective service and jurisdictional areas. Figure 1 shows the portions of the EBP Subbasin covered by EBMUD and Hayward as the exclusive GSAs.

In January 2022, EBMUD and Hayward completed development of a single Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) for the entire EBP Subbasin that was later approved by the Department of Water Resources in July 2023, with nine recommended corrective actions. EBMUD and Hayward are implementing the GSP to comply with the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA), which includes preparing a Periodic Evaluation at least once every five years and, if necessary, amending the GSP.

PROJECT SUMMARY

The purpose of this Request for Proposal (RFP) is for a CONSULTANT to provide professional services to support preparation of a Periodic Evaluation and Amendment to the EBP Subbasin GSP in compliance with the SGMA and the GSP regulations. The scope of services also includes addressing the Department of Water Resources' (DWR) recommended corrective actions provided on the 2022 EBP Subbasin GSP, incorporating implementation updates since the 2022 GSP was developed, and providing as needed GSP implementation support. The EBP Subbasin is a medium-priority groundwater basin making it mandatory for a Periodic Evaluation to be submitted to DWR by January 31, 2027.

The CONSULTANT shall utilize DWR's SGMA guidance documents and Best Management Practices as appropriate. The draft GSP Amendment will be released for public comment prior to adoption by the GSAs. After the Amendment is adopted, the GSP will be submitted to DWR for public review and their approval.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Task 1.0 Stakeholders' Communication and Engagement (C&E) Support

SGMA and GSP regulations require public notification and communication during the GSP amendment and periodic evaluation process. In accordance with the GSP regulations, EBMUD and Hayward developed and are currently implementing the East Bay Plain Subbasin Stakeholder Communication and Engagement (C&E) Plan which describes the GSA's joint decision making process and outlines a roadmap to meet SGMA's stakeholder engagement requirements. The GSAs will use the C&E Plan to engage with and gather input from various stakeholders. The GSAs will work with CONSULTANT to consider input from the stakeholders in making key decisions in the GSP amendment and evaluation process.

CONSULTANT will support the C&E process during the preparation of the EBP Subbasin GSP periodic evaluation and amendment by participating in meetings of the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC), Interbasin Working Group, and general stakeholders. It is anticipated that the TAC may meet approximately 4 times. CONSULTANT may also be requested to participate in up to 4 general stakeholder meetings, and up to 3 Interbasin Working Group meetings.

C&E associated tasks for CONSULTANT may include preparing presentations, status updates, and responses to issues or concerns raised by stakeholders.

Task 1 Deliverables:

- Prepare progress update presentations
- Participation in stakeholder meetings
- Prepare responses to stakeholder issues and concerns

Task 2.0 Project Management

The GSAs' project manager for the East Bay Plain Subbasin GSP will manage the overall GSP development project including resources, consulting contracts, task completion, budget and schedule, and grant reporting. Each GSA will appoint a Project Manager to coordinate with the CONSULTANT.

The CONSULTANT will be solely responsible for coordinating closely with GSAs and managing its consulting teams, including its sub-consultants, specialists, contractors and

supporting entities, to meet the project schedule and produce deliverables, as stated in the consulting contract. CONSULTANT shall prepare initial project schedules for consulting services. This schedule will incorporate GSA's C&E activities and an overall project schedule and shall include milestones for deliverables.

The CONSULTANT shall track contract budget and schedule to update the GSAs' Technical Team on a monthly basis. The updates must show itemized tasks, budget allocation, percent completion and remaining budget balance.

When invoicing for rendered services, CONSULTANT shall prepare monthly invoices by identifying and providing summaries of the billed and/or completed tasks

Task 2 Deliverables:

- Monthly invoices that include budget tracking updates
- Summary of the work completed during the billing period
- Schedule updates

Task 3.0 EBP GSP Updates to Address DWR's Recommended Corrective Actions

In July 2023, DWR approved the 2022 EBP Subbasin GSP with the nine noted recommended corrective actions (CA) summarized in Table 1. In February 2024, the GSAs had an initial meeting with DWR's GSP Review Section to discuss the more complex recommended corrective actions (CA #3, #4, #6, and #9 listed in Table 1). The CONSULTANT will coordinate with the GSAs to address the outstanding corrective actions through the subtasks outline below.

CA No.	Description	Notes
1a	Provide seawater intrusion conditions in the Subbasin, including maps and cross-sections of the seawater intrusion front for each principal aquifer.	See Subtask 3.1
1b	Identify interconnected surface water systems within the Subbasin and an estimate of the quantity and timing of depletions of those systems.	See Subtask 3.2
2	Explain how the saline water from the San Francisco Bay is incorporated into the model and clarify whether the water budgets represent the Subbasin or the entire model boundary.	The EBP Subbasin GSP discusses how the San Francisco Bay is incorporated in the groundwater model in

Table 1. Summary of DWR's Corrective Actions on the 2022 EBP Subbasin GSP

		Appendix 6, Section 3.3.1.1. Water budgets represent the EBP Subbasin boundary.
3	Revise the sustainable management criteria for chronic lowering of groundwater levels, land subsidence, and depletions of interconnected surface water to be based on seasonal low groundwater levels to ensure potential impacts to beneficial uses and users are considered.	See Subtask 3.3
4	Explain how setting minimum thresholds for groundwater levels below sea level in the Shallow Aquifer Zone will avoid undesirable results for the seawater intrusion.	See Subtask 3.1
5	Establish sustainable management criteria and monitoring necessary for seawater intrusion using a chloride isocontour as per the GSP Regulations.	See Subtask 3.1
6	Revise the definition of undesirable results for degraded groundwater quality so that exceedances of minimum thresholds caused by groundwater extraction, whether the GSA has implemented pumping regulations or not, are considered in the assessment of undesirable results in the Subbasin.	See Subtask 3.4
7a	Provide evidence that land subsidence has not occurred and is not expected to occur in the future within the Shallow Aquifer or establish sustainable management criteria as required by the GSP Regulations.	See Subtask 3.5
7b	Reevaluate the minimum thresholds for both chronic lowering of groundwater levels and the groundwater levels being used as a proxy for land subsidence to be assured that both sustainability indicators are protected with a single value in the effected wells.	See Subtask 3.5
8a	Reevaluate the minimum threshold requirement that avoids dewatering of surface water before reaching the currently established 50% of the monitoring stations.	See Subtask 3.2
8b	Consider utilizing the interconnected surface water guidance, as appropriate, when issued by the Department to establish quantifiable minimum thresholds, measurable objectives, and management actions.	See Subtask 3.2
8c	Continue to fill data gaps, collect additional monitoring data, and implement the current strategy to manage	In progress by the GSAs. See Task 4:

	depletions of interconnected surface water and define segments of interconnectivity and timing.	Subtasks 4.1, 4.2, and 4.3.
8d	Prioritize collaborating and coordinating with local, state, and federal regulatory agencies as well as interested parties to better understand the full suite of beneficial uses and users that may be impacted by pumping induced surface water depletion within the GSA's jurisdictional area.	In progress by the GSAs. GSAs will work with CONSULTANT to provide updates in the GSP. CONSULTANT to include coordination and outreach with agencies/interested parties under Task 1.
9	Provide a table and labeled map of the representative, non- representative wells, and sentinel wells to be used in monitoring seawater intrusion, including their purpose (groundwater levels and/or water quality – chloride/TDS), aquifer, and monitoring frequency.	See Subtask 3.6

Subtask 3.1 Address Corrective Actions Related to Seawater Intrusion (CA #1a, 4, 5)

The 2022 GSP used groundwater levels as a proxy for seawater intrusion conditions. The regulations allow for use of groundwater levels as a proxy as long as significant correlation exists between groundwater elevations and that indicator. The interim Minimum Threshold (MT) for seawater intrusion in the 2022 GSP is based on the fivefoot mean sea level groundwater elevation contour for the Water Table Aquifer Zone.

DWR provided several recommended CA related to seawater intrusion. The CONSULTANT will coordinate with the GSAs to address CA #1a, CA #4, and CA #5 as noted in Table 1. Because the EBP Subbasin is long and narrow, and limited monitoring wells exist to collect chloride data, CONSULTANT is encouraged to propose alternative approaches to addressing CA #1a and CA #5. During the meeting the GSAs had with DWR in February to discuss the CA , DWR had indicated willingness to consider other approaches if sufficient rationale is provided.

The number of monitoring wells needed to develop suitable chloride isocontours for each principal aquifer would be prohibitively expensive; therefore, it is not feasible for the GSAs to construct a large network of wells. Additionally, the EBP Subbasin is currently at low risk for seawater intrusion since the pumping volumes in the EBP Subbasin are low and expected to stay stable in the foreseeable future. The approach developed by the CONSULTANT to address the CA related to seawater intrusion should emphasize utilizing data from the existing representative monitoring site (RMS) wells, broader monitoring network wells, and any other relevant information and data that may be available from other sources. Any proposed alternatives will require discussion with DWR, including a proposed monitoring/management plan for seawater intrusion.

The CONSULTANT will also expand and include additional justification for the low potential of seawater intrusion in the EBP Subbasin. A clear description of differences in the geology in the EBP Subbasin compared to the Niles Cone Subbasin should be emphasized along with how potential seawater intrusion in the Niles Cone Subbasin is being monitored and is not moving towards the EBP Subbasin.

Subtask 3.2 Identify Interconnected Surface Water Systems, Develop Estimates for Quantity and Timing of Depletions, and Update SMCs for Interconnected Surface Water (CA #1b, #8a, #8b)

The CONSULTANT will work with the GSAs to identify interconnected surface water systems and to develop an approach to estimate the quantity and timing of depletions (CA #1b). Since the 2022 GSP was completed, studies have been conducted, or are underway to better characterize interconnected surface water and groundwater-dependent ecosystems (GDEs) in the Subbasin (see Subtasks 4.2 and 4.3). To estimate the quantity and timing of depletions, the CONSULTANT may use the existing East Bay Plain Groundwater Model (EBPGWM) or propose an alternative method(s) that is suitable for the EBP Subbasin. DWR's Interconnected Surface Water guidance documents should be used, as appropriate, to develop the methodology to estimate depletions and to reevaluate the minimum thresholds, measurable objectives, and management actions (CA #8a, 8b). CONSULTANT may also propose alternative approaches that will be discussed with DWR and interested stakeholders.

Subtask 3.3 Provide Justification to Base Sustainable Management Criteria on Seasonal High Instead of Seasonal Low Groundwater Levels (CA #3)

DWR's recommended CA #3 is to revise the sustainable management criteria for chronic lowering of groundwater levels, land subsidence, and depletions of interconnected surface water to be based on seasonal low groundwater levels to ensure potential impacts to beneficial uses and users are considered. Based on an initial discussion that the GSAs had with DWR about this corrective action, DWR is open to flexibility on this action if the GSAs show how the beneficial users are protected when levels decline through the pumping season. The CONSULTANT will work with the GSAs to incorporate a rationale in the updated GSP for why spring groundwater levels are more appropriate to be used for the EBP Subbasin and still protective of the beneficial users.

Subtask 3.4 Revise the Definition of Undesirable Results for Degraded Groundwater Quality (CA #6)

DWR's CA #6 is to revise the definition of Undesirable Results (UR) for degraded groundwater quality so that exceedances of MTs caused by groundwater extraction, whether the GSA has implemented pumping regulations or not, are considered in the assessment of UR in the EBP Subbasin. The CONSULTANT will work with the GSAs to update the definition of UR.

Based on the GSAs initial discussion with DWR about this corrective action, DWR indicated that SGMA does not limit the responsibility of GSAs to only their projects and management actions that involve pumping. They further said that the GSAs need to understand what is happening in the EBP Subbasin, set URs at levels that would cause a significant and unreasonable condition, and set MTs accordingly to avoid URs. Additionally, DWR indicated that the GSAs need to demonstrate coordination with regional boards and federal agencies. The GSAs and the San Francisco Regional Water Quality Control Board (SFRWQCB) and Department Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) have subsequently met and agreed to meet on an annual to biannual frequency to discuss any updates on the largest plumes and sites (closures and new sites). The agencies will provide the GSAs with any management updates that may be relevant to GSP implementation.

Subtask 3.5 Update Subsidence Metric to Rate of Subsidence Using InSAR Data (CA #7a, #7b)

The CONSULTANT will update the subsidence metric in the GSP from using groundwater levels as a proxy to the rate of subsidence using InSAR data. This update will be done for the three Principal aquifer zones. This subsidence metric update will respond to DWR's CA #7a, which is to establish a Sustainable Management Criterion (SMC) as required by GSP regulations. This update also responds to DWR's CA #7b, to reevaluate the MT for both chronic lowering of groundwater levels and the groundwater levels being used as a proxy for land subsidence. Using InSAR data will avoid groundwater levels from the same well being used as the basis for the MT for more than one sustainability indicator. EBMUD's extensometers located in San Lorenzo will also continue to be used to collect land subsidence data in the southern portion of the EBP Subbasin.

Subtask 3.6 Prepare a Table and Labeled Map of the Representative, Non-Representative Wells, and Sentinel Wells (CA #9)

To address DWR's CA #9, the CONSULTANT will prepare and include in the GSP a table and labeled map of the representative, non-representative, and sentinel wells to be used in monitoring seawater intrusion, including their purpose (groundwater levels and/or water quality – chloride/ total dissolved solids (TDS)), aquifer, and monitoring frequency.

Task 3 Deliverables:

- Address DWR's recommended corrective actions
- Participate in meetings with DWR
- Incorporate updates into the GSP Periodic Evaluation and Amendment (Tasks 5.0 and 6.0)

Task 4.0 EBP Subbasin GSP Implementation Activities Updates

Subtask 4.1 RMS Monitoring Well Network Update (CA #8c)

In the 2022 GSP, up to 12 new RMS wells were proposed to fill data gaps on groundwater levels and water quality in the Subbasin. In February 2025, the GSAs installed 3 of the proposed 12 additional RMS wells. Since the GSP was developed, the cost to install new monitoring wells has increased significantly; therefore, the GSAs were only able to install 3 new RMS wells to help fill the most critical data gaps in the EBP Subbasin. The CONSULTANT will work with the GSAs to re-evaluate the number of wells needed in the RMS monitoring well network and, if feasible, to develop a rationale for reducing the number of RMS wells to monitor groundwater levels and water quality.

The 2022 GSP also proposed up to 10 new shallow monitoring wells along major creeks (San Pablo and San Leandro Creeks) to be incorporated into the RMS network to fill data gaps on interconnected surface water. The CONSULTANT will also re-evaluate the number of shallow wells needed near the creeks, determine the potential locations of the wells, and provide the rationale if fewer than 10 wells are necessary.

Subtask 4.2 Filling Data Gaps (CA #8c)

The CONSULTANT will incorporate in the Periodic Evaluation and the Amendment the data collected from monitoring wells, results of studies conducted since completion of the 2022 GSP to fill data gaps, and information from the three new RMS wells installed in February 2025. The data collected includes groundwater levels and baseline water quality data collected from the RMS wells. Recent studies include the stream isotope study along San Pablo and San Leandro Creeks completed in 2023 to characterize interconnected surface water and the GDEs Biological Monitoring Project that is currently in progress (see Subtask 4.3). Additionally, groundwater isotope samples were collected from wells in 2022 to further characterize the Deep Aquifer and the transition zone between the EBP Subbasin and the Niles Cone Subbasin. The new isotope results support the previous interpretations that the transition zone creates a partial to significant barrier to flow in the Deep Aquifer. The groundwater isotope study report has been drafted and is under review.

Subtask 4.3 Evaluation of Potential GDEs (CA #8c)

To address one of the management actions identified in the 2022 GSP, the GSAs hired a consultant in 2024 to conduct field verification of potential GDEs in the EBP Subbasin, and to prepare a comprehensive GDE map and Baseline Habitat Survey Report. As part of filling data gaps in the potential GDE areas, the GDE Study consultant included additional data sets in their evaluation that had become available since the 2022 GSP was developed. This included newer data sets that resulted in other potential GDEs being identified, mostly in the coastal areas, that were beyond the potential GDEs presented in the 2022 GSP. The GDE Study consultant conducted a preliminary evaluation to rate the likelihood that areas identified are GDEs. The CONSULTANT will further evaluate the likelihood that the additional areas in the coastal areas are potential GDEs and may incorporate information on groundwater quality (such as historical salinity), hydrogeology, and water sources for water bodies along with the depth to groundwater and species information.

Task 4 Deliverables:

• Incorporate Task 4 updates into the GSP Periodic Evaluation and Amendment (Tasks 5.0 and 6.0)

Task 5.0 EBP Subbasin GSP Periodic Evaluation Preparation

Under this task, CONSULTANT shall work the GSAs to prepare the GSP Periodic Evaluation in compliance with SGMA and the GSP regulations. The GSAs will review and comment on the Periodic Evaluation. The Periodic Evaluation should follow the format recommended in DWR's Guide to Annual Reports, Periodic Evaluations, and Plan Amendments, to ensure that the GSP includes all the required information. The GSP Periodic Evaluation is due to DWR before January 31, 2027 and will include the following sections:

- Executive Summary
- New Information Collected
- Response to DWR Recommended Corrective Actions
- Groundwater Conditions Relative to the Sustainable Management Criteria
- Status of Projects and Management Actions
- Basin Setting Based on New Information or Changes in Water Use
- Monitoring Networks
- GSA Authorities and Enforcement Actions
- Outreach, Engagement, and Coordination with Other Agencies
- Other Information
- Summary of Proposed or Completed Revisions to Plan Elements

Task 5 Deliverables:

- Prepare Draft Periodic Evaluation
- Prepare Final Periodic Evaluation for Submittal to DWR

Task 6.0 GSP Plan Amendment

Based on DWR's Guide to Annual Reports, Periodic Evaluations, and Plan Amendments, an amendment to the EBP Subbasin GSP is likely warranted because the GSAs are proposing to make changes to the SMCs and the RMS network. The CONSULTANT will incorporate the updates from Tasks 3.0 and 4.0 to prepare the GSP amendment. The 2022 GSP will be used as the basis for the amended GSP and red-lined updates will be provided in track changes. The CONSULTANT will work with the GSAs to re-evaluate the project and managements actions to determine if any additions or removals are warranted.

The CONSULTANT will perform final quality assurance/quality control assessment of data accuracy and interpretation, organization of the amended GSP, consistency, correctness, and need to incorporate editorial changes. The draft amended GSP will be released for public comment prior to it being amended by the GSA's governing bodies. The GSAs may amend the

GSP after a public hearing, held at least 90 days after providing notice to a city or county within the area of the proposed Amendment. The amended GSP will then be submitted to DWR before January 31, 2027, where it will be posted for an additional 60-day public review period. After that time, DWR has up to two years to approve the document. All references, citations, and studies, as well as documents for appendices, will be compiled and documented.

Task 6 Deliverables:

- Prepare draft red-lined GSP Amendment
- Prepare final red-lined GSP Amendment
- Prepare final GSP Amendment for adoption and submittal to DWR

Task 7.0 GSP Annual Report Preparation Support

CONSULTANT shall provide as-needed support to prepare the GSP Annual Reports for Water Years 2026 and 2027. The Annual Report for Water Year 2025 will not be prepared as part of this contract since that annual report will still use the SMCs developed for the 2022 GSP. CONSULTANT support needed may include updating the groundwater elevation contours, groundwater extraction maps, groundwater storage, seawater intrusion information, and preparing figures along with reviewing technical data and information. The CONSULTANT may be requested to provide annual report support after Water Year 2027 through a contract change order.

Task 8.0 Optional Task: East Bay Plain Subbasin Groundwater Model Updates

Under this optional task, CONSULTANT shall provide as needed updates to the existing EBPGWM to help address the DWR recommended corrective actions and other necessary updates to prepare the GSP Amendment and Periodic Evaluation. The EBPGWM was developed and calibrated during the preparation of the 2022 GSP. The CONSULTANT will include justification in their proposal if model updates are necessary. Major updates to the EBPGWM are not planned.

Task 9.0 Optional Task: Shallow Monitoring Wells Installation Support

Under this optional task, the CONSULTANT shall secure permissions to install 4 to 10 shallow monitoring wells (< 50 feet deep) near San Pablo and San Leandro Creeks, acquire necessary project permits, prepare construction specifications, work with a licensed C-57 drilling contractor with experience completing shallow wells retained by EBMUD under a separate contract to construct the monitoring wells, and install dedicated water level monitoring equipment.

The CONSULTANT shall prepare specifications for the drilling, construction, and development of the monitoring wells, and supervise the drilling contractor and inspect all phases of the work to ensure compliance with project specifications, permit requirements, site specific restrictions, and accepted well drilling practice.

APPENDIX B COMPENSATION

East Bay Municipal Utility District

East Bay Plain Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan Periodic Evaluation, Amendment and Implementation Support (WSID-0325)

Compensation for services provided in Appendix A, SCOPE OF SERVICES, shall be in accordance with the methods and specific amounts described in this Exhibit.

- 1. DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT only the actual costs incurred, subject to the Maximum Cost Ceiling. CONSULTANT certifies that the cost and pricing information used herein are complete, current and accurate. CONSULTANT acknowledges that it will expend public funds and hereby agrees to use every appropriate method to contain its fees and minimize costs under this Agreement.
- 2. Compensation for CONSULTANT services authorized shall be on a cost reimbursement basis and include Direct Labor, Indirect Costs, Subcontractor Services and Other Direct Costs. Costs to be paid comprise the following:

2.1 Direct Labor

Direct labor costs shall be the total number of hours worked on the job by each employee times the hourly rate for the employee's labor. Hours worked shall be rounded-up to the nearest quarter-hour (0.25) increment. Labor rates shall be based on a normal 8-hour day, 40-hour week.

2.2 Indirect Costs

DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT an overhead expense equal to *(insert overhead rate)* percent of labor costs incurred by CONSULTANT. CONSULTANT acknowledges and agrees that this overhead compensation is <u>in lieu</u> of itemized payments for indirect and overhead expenses, which includes, but is not limited to:

- Clerical, word processing and/or accounting work.
- Vehicle usage and mileage between CONSULTANT's office and DISTRICT offices or work locations within DISTRICT service area. For work outside of DISTRICT's service area, DISTRICT approval to charge for vehicle usage and mileage and other travel expenses must be obtained prior to the expenses being incurred.
- Parking. (DISTRICT does <u>NOT</u> provide parking to CONSULTANT in the DISTRICT Administration Building, located at 375 11th Street, Oakland, California. CONSULTANT shall be responsible for parking elsewhere).
- Postage, or for certified or registered mail. Extraordinary postage, overnight

delivery, or messenger delivery charges must be approved in advance.

- Routine copying costs for in-house copying.
- Local telephone charges, including cellular phone, modem and telecopier/ FAX charges.
- Office space lease.
- Office supplies.
- Computer equipment.
- Computer usage charges.
- Books, publications and periodicals.
- Insurance.
- Miscellaneous hand tools or equipment rental.
- Safety training, seminars or continuing education.
- Utilities.
- Local meals, transportation or other travel charges.
- Inadequately described or miscellaneous expenses.

The above items are illustrative, rather than exhaustive.

2.3 <u>Subcontractor Services</u>

Subcontractor services shall be billed at cost (plus a *(insert rate)* percent markup).

2.4 Other Direct Costs

Other Direct Costs shall be approved by DISTRICT in advance in writing, and shall be billed at cost, without markup. These costs include, but are not limited to the following:

- 2.4.1 Automobile expenses at *(insert rate)* cents per mile when CONSULTANT is required to travel <u>outside</u> of DISTRICT's service area. Mileage will NOT be reimbursed for rental car expenses, where the rental agreement specifies unlimited mileage.
- 2.4.2 DISTRICT will pay for necessary and reasonable travel expenses provided the travel is approved in advance by DISTRICT Project Manager, and providing that:

• Each expense is separately identified (airfare, hotel, rental car) with an amount and date incurred. Confirming documents may be requested.

- Charged mileage for vehicle mileage shall not exceed the current allowable Internal Revenue Service rate.
- Air travel is coach or economy rate for refundable tickets. Business and first-class rates will not be reimbursed.
- Lodging accommodations are moderately priced.
- Meal charges are reasonable. (Reimbursement for meals will only be

made in conjunction with out-of-town travel.)

- Taxis or shuttles are used rather than rental cars whenever cost effective.
- Rental cars are intermediate or compact class only.

2.5 Budget Amounts

Contracted Services	Optional Services	Maximum Cost Ceiling
\$(dollars)	\$(dollars)	\$(dollars)

The Maximum Cost Ceiling shown above is based upon the cost estimate and labor hours attached hereto as EXHIBIT B-1 – Cost Distribution and EXHIBIT B-2 – Labor Distribution* Costs described above, comprising Direct Labor, Indirect Costs, Subcontractor Services and Other Direct Costs shall be payable up to the Maximum Cost Ceiling as specified herein.

2.6 Billing and Payment

CONSULTANT shall invoice DISTRICT monthly for the actual costs incurred for work performed during the previous month. Actual costs shall include Direct Labor, Indirect Costs, Subcontractor Services, and Other Direct Costs as specified herein. Actual costs shall be invoiced by task as described in EXHIBIT A – Scope of Services. Invoices shall set forth a description of the actual costs incurred and the services performed, the date the services were performed and the amount of time spent rounded to the nearest quarterly hour increment (0.25) on each date services were performed and by whom. Supporting documentation for the invoice shall be organized to clearly identify the task charged and shall be supported by such copies of invoices, payroll records, and other documents as may be required by DISTRICT to authenticate invoiced costs. Copies of all invoices from any subcontractor(s) and outside service(s) shall be attached. DISTRICT shall pay CONTRACTOR within thirty (30) days, upon receipt of a proper CONTRACTOR invoice, provided that all invoices are accompanied by sufficient cost documentation, and DISTRICT Form P-47 (Subcontractor Payment Report -CEP Participation), to allow the determination of the reasonableness and accuracy of said invoice.

The Maximum Cost Ceiling is in effect for the entire Scope of Services. If the authorized Maximum Cost Ceiling is reached, CONSULTANT shall complete the agreed-upon work for the authorized Maximum Cost Ceiling. Labor hours may be reallocated within the tasks without renegotiation of the Agreement with written

approval from DISTRICT Project Manager in such a manner so as not to exceed the Maximum Cost Ceiling. In no event shall the Maximum Cost Ceiling be increased unless there is a written amendment of this Agreement.

2.7 Budget Status Reports

For the duration of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with monthly budget status reports that include, in tabular or graphical format, for each report period: (1) the original cumulative projected cash flows for the duration of the project (prepared at the start of the project), (2) the actual cash flows for the work completed to date, (3) the current projected cash flows to complete the project, and (4) the earned value (the amount of work actually completed to date compared to the budget expended). Current projected cash flows shall be based on all CONSULTANT and subcontractor time sheets up to a date within 3 weeks of the date of the budget status report.

(Note: this table is prepared by the Contractor. The following is provided to show format.)

EXHIBIT B-1 – Cost Distribution

East Bay Municipal Utility District

East Bay Plain Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan Periodic Evaluation, Amendment and Implementation Support (WSID-

0323)													
	CONSULTANT						Subcontractors**						
		Direct L	abor				Subcontractor # 1			Subcontractor # 2			
	Project	Project					Project	Assist.		Project	Assist.		
	Manager	Engineer	Drafting				Engineer	Engineer		Engineer	Engineer		
Hourly Rate					Indirect				Total			Total	
(\$/hr.)	(***)	(***)	(***)	Total	Costs	ODCs*	(***)	(***)	Cost	(***)	(***)	Cost	Total
I. Contracted Services		Γ	I	Γ	Γ		I	I	Γ	I	I	Ι	
Task 1.1:													
Task 1.2:													
Task 2.1:													
Task 2.2:													
Subtotal I.													
II. Optional Services													
Task 3:													
Task 4:													
Subtotal II.													
TOTAL of													
Subtotals I.													
& II													

0325)

* ODCs = Other Direct Costs.

** Includes any prime consultant markup in subcontractor hourly rates.

*** Insert hourly rate.

(Note: this table is prepared by the Contractor. The following is provided to show format.)

EXHIBIT B-2 – Labor Distribution*

East Bay Municipal Utility District

East Bay Plain Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan Periodic Evaluation, Amendment and Implementation Support (WSID-0325)

	CONSULTANT					Subcontractors***					
				Su	Subcontractor # 1			Subcontractor # 2			
	Project	Project			Project	Assist.		Project	Assist.		
	Manager	Engineer	Drafting	Subtotal	Engineer	Engineer	Subtotal	Engineer	Engineer	Subtotal	Total
I. Contracted Services											
Task 1.1:											
Task 1.2:											
Task 2.1:											
Task 2.2:											
Subtotal I.											
II. Optional Services											
Task 3:											
Task 4:											
Subtotal II.											
TOTAL											

(* Include both Contractor and subcontractor hours. Also, include the percent time commitment for key personnel if a critical issue for success of the project.)

APPENDIX C INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Provisions Applicable to All Required Insurance

A. Prior to the beginning of and throughout the duration of Services, and for any additional period of time as specified below, CONTRACTOR shall, at its sole cost and expense, maintain insurance in conformance with the requirements set forth below.

B. CONTRACTOR shall provide Verification of Insurance as required by this Agreement by providing the completed Verification of Insurance as requested below by signing and submitting Exhibit C ("Insurance Requirements") to the DISTRICT. The Insurance Requirements may be signed by the insurance broker or the insurance broker's agent (Insurance Broker/Agent) for the CONTRACTOR, or by an officer of the CONTRACTOR (Officer), or by the CONTRACTOR's risk manager (Risk Manager). The Notice to Proceed shall not be issued, and CONTRACTOR shall not commence Services until a signed Verification of Insurance evidencing the specific coverages and limits required by this Agreement has been received by the DISTRICT.

C. CONTRACTOR shall carry and maintain the minimum insurance requirements as defined in this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall require any contractor/subcontractor to carry and maintain the minimum insurance required in this Agreement to the extent the insurance applies to the scope of the services to be performed by contractor/subcontractor.

D. Receipt of a signed Verification of Insurance by the DISTRICT shall not relieve CONTRACTOR of any of the insurance requirements, nor decrease liability of CONTRACTOR.

E. Insurance must be maintained, and an updated Verification of Insurance must be provided to the DISTRICT before the expiration of insurance by having the Insurance Broker/Agent, Officer, or Risk Manager update, sign and return the Insurance Requirements to the DISTRICT's contract manager. The updated Insurance Requirements shall become a part of the Agreement but shall not require a change order to the Agreement. It is the CONTRACTOR's sole responsibility to provide or to ensure that an updated Verification of Insurance is provided to the DISTRICT. The DISTRICT has no obligation to solicit, remind, prompt, request, seek, or otherwise obtain any updated Verification of Insurance, and any actual or alleged failure on the part of the DISTRICT to obtain any updated Verification of Insurance shall not in any way be construed to be a waiver of any right or remedy of the DISTRICT, in this or any regard.

F. The insurance required hereunder may be obtained by a combination of primary, excess and/or umbrella insurance, and all coverage shall be at least as broad as the requirements listed in this Agreement.

G. Any deductibles, self-insurance, or self-insured retentions (SIRs) applicable to the required insurance coverage must be declared to and accepted by the DISTRICT.

H. At the option and request of the DISTRICT, CONTRACTOR shall provide documentation of its financial ability to pay the deductible, self-insurance, or SIR.

I. CONTRACTOR is responsible for the payment of any deductibles or SIRs pertaining to the policies required under this Agreement. In the event CONTRACTOR is unable to pay the required SIR, CONTRACTOR agrees that such SIR may be satisfied, in whole or in part, by the DISTRICT as the additional insured at the DISTRICT's sole and absolute discretion, unless to do so would terminate or void the policy(ies).

J. Unless otherwise accepted by the DISTRICT, all required insurance must be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A- V.

K. CONTRACTOR shall defend the DISTRICT and pay any damages as a result of failure to provide the waiver of subrogation from the insurance carrier required by this Agreement.

L. For any coverage that is provided on a claims-made coverage form (which type of form is permitted only where specified), the retroactive date must be shown, must be before the date of this Agreement, and must be before the beginning of any Services related to this Agreement.

M. For all claims-made policies the updated Verification of Insurance must be provided to the DISTRICT for at least three (3) years after expiration or termination of this Agreement.

N. If claims-made coverage is canceled or is non-renewed and if the claims-made coverage is not replaced with another claims-made policy form with a retroactive date prior to the effective date of this Agreement and prior to the start of any Services related to this Agreement, CONTRACTOR must purchase an extended reporting period for a minimum of three (3) years after expiration or termination of the Agreement.

O. In the event of a claim or suit, and upon request by the DISTRICT, CONTRACTOR agrees to provide a copy of the pertinent policy(ies) within 10 days of such request to the DISTRICT for review. Any actual or alleged failure on the part of the DISTRICT to request a copy of the pertinent policy(ies) shall not in any way be construed to be a waiver of any right or remedy of the DISTRICT, in this or any regard. Additionally, the DISTRICT may, at any time during CONTRACTOR's performance under this Agreement, request a copy of the Declarations pages and Schedule of Forms and Endorsements of any policy required to be maintained by CONTRACTOR hereunder, whether or not a suit or claim has been filed. Premium details may be redacted from any such documents requested.

P. The defense and indemnification obligations of this Agreement are undertaken in addition to, and shall not in any way be limited by, the insurance obligations contained herein.

Q. Where additional insured coverage is required, the additional insured coverage shall be primary and non-contributory, and will not seek contribution from the DISTRICT's insurance or self-insurance.

R. CONTRACTOR agrees to provide immediate Notice to the DISTRICT of any loss or claim against CONTRACTOR arising out of, pertaining to, or in any way relating to this Agreement or to Services performed under this Agreement. The DISTRICT assumes no obligation or liability by such Notice, but

has the right (but not the duty) to monitor the handling of any such claim(s) if the claim(s) is likely to involve the DISTRICT.

S. It is the obligation of the CONTRACTOR to ensure all contractors/subcontractors performing services under this Agreement maintain the necessary coverages and limits. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all contractors/subcontractors agree to the same indemnity obligation that CONTRACTOR agrees to in this Agreement based on the nature and scope of services being performed by each contractor/subcontractor. CONTRACTOR shall require that each contractor/subcontractor include the DISTRICT, its directors, officers, and employees as additional insureds on its liability policy(ies) (excepting Professional Liability and Workers' Compensation) for all ongoing and completed operations with coverage as broad as required of CONTRACTOR under this Agreement. Failure or inability to secure fully adequate insurance shall in no way relieve the CONTRACTOR or all contractors/subcontractors of the responsibility for its own acts or the acts of any contractors or any employees or agents of either. All contractors/subcontractors are to waive subrogation against the DISTRICT on all policies. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for maintaining records evidencing contractors'/subcontractors' compliance with the necessary insurance coverages and limits, and such records shall be made available to the DISTRICT within 10 days upon request.

T. It is CONTRACTOR's responsibility to ensure its compliance with the insurance requirements. Any actual or alleged failure on the part of the DISTRICT to obtain proof of insurance required under this Agreement shall not in any way be construed to be a waiver of any right or remedy of the DISTRICT, in this or any regard.

U. Notice of Cancellation/Non-Renewal/Material Reduction. The insurance requirements hereunder are mandatory, and the DISTRICT may, at its sole and absolute discretion, terminate the services provided by CONTRACTOR, should CONTRACTOR breach its obligations to maintain the required coverage and limits set forth in this Agreement. No coverage required hereunder shall be cancelled, non-renewed or materially reduced in coverage or limits without the DISTRICT being provided at least thirty (30) days prior written notice, other than cancellation for the non-payment of premiums, in which event the DISTRICT shall be provided ten (10) days prior written notice. Replacement of coverage with another policy or insurer, without any lapse in coverage or any reduction of the stated requirements does not require notice beyond submission to the DISTRICT of an updated Verification of Insurance which shall be met by having the Insurance Broker/ Agent, or Officer, or Risk Manager update, sign and return the Insurance Requirements.

I. Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance Coverage

- A. Workers' Compensation insurance including Employer's Liability insurance with minimum limits as follows:
 - Coverage A. Statutory Benefits Limits
 - Coverage B.Employer's Liability of not less than:
Bodily Injury by accident:
Bodily Injury by disease:\$1,000,000 each accident
\$1,000,000 each employee
\$1,000,000 policy limit
- B. If there is an onsite exposure of injury to CONTRACTOR, and/or contractor/subcontractor's employees under the U.S. Longshore and Harbor Workers' Compensation Act, the Jones Act, or

under laws, regulations or statutes applicable to maritime employees, coverage is required for such injuries or claims.

- C. If CONTRACTOR is exempt from carrying Workers' Compensation Insurance, CONTRACTOR must return the completed Verification of Insurance confirming that CONTRACTOR has no employees and is exempt from the State of California Workers' Compensation requirements.
- D. If CONTRACTOR is self-insured with respect to Workers' Compensation coverage, CONTRACTOR shall provide to the DISTRICT a Certificate of Consent to Self-Insure from the California Department of Industrial Relations. Such self-insurance shall meet the minimum limit requirements and shall waive subrogation rights in favor of the DISTRICT as stated below in section "E."
- **E.** Waiver of Subrogation. Workers' Compensation policies, including any applicable excess and umbrella insurance, must contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement providing that CONTRACTOR and each insurer waive any and all rights of recovery by subrogation, or otherwise, against the DISTRICT, its directors, board, and committee members, officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers. CONTRACTOR shall defend and pay any and all damages, fees, and costs, of any kind arising out of, pertaining to, or in any way relating to CONTRACTOR's failure to provide waiver of subrogation from the insurance carrier.

Verification of Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance Coverage

By checking the box and signing below, I hereby verify that the CONTRACTOR is exempt from the State of California's requirement to carry Workers' Compensation insurance.

As the CONTRACTOR's Insurance Broker/Agent, Officer, or Risk Manager, I hereby verify that I have reviewed and confirmed that the CONTRACTOR carries Workers' Compensation insurance as required by this Agreement, including the relevant provisions applicable to all required insurance.

Self-Insured Retention: Amount: \$
Policy Limit: \$
Policy Number:
Policy Period: fromto
Insurance Carrier Name:
Insurance Broker/Agent or Officer or Risk Manager - Print Name:
Insurance Broker/Agent or Officer or Risk Manager's Signature:

II. Commercial General Liability Insurance ("CGL") Coverage

- A. CONTRACTOR's insurance shall be primary, and any insurance or self-insurance procured or maintained by the DISTRICT shall not be required to contribute to it.
- B. The insurance requirements under this Agreement shall be the greater of (1) the minimum coverage and limits specified in this Agreement; or (2) the broader coverage and maximum limits of coverage of any insurance policies or proceeds available to the Named Insured. It is agreed that these insurance requirements shall not in any way act to reduce coverage that is broader or that includes higher limits than the minimums required herein. No representation is made that the minimum insurance requirements of this Agreement are sufficient to cover the obligations of the CONTRACTOR.
- C. Minimum Requirements. CGL insurance with minimum per occurrence and aggregate limits as follows:

Personal Injury/Advertising Injury Products/Completed Operations

Bodily Injury and Property Damage \$2,000,000 per occurrence & aggregate \$2,000,000 per occurrence & aggregate \$2,000,000 per occurrence & aggregate

- D. Coverage must be on an occurrence basis and be as broad as Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CG 00 01.
- E. Coverage for Products, and Completed Operations, and Ongoing Operations must be included in the insurance policies and shall not contain any "prior work" coverage limitation or exclusion applicable to any Services performed by CONTRACTOR and/or contractor/subcontractor under this Agreement.
- F. There will be no exclusion for explosions, collapse, or underground liability (XCU).
- G. Insurance policies and Additional Insured Endorsement(s) shall not exclude liability and damages to work arising out of, pertaining to, or in any way relating to services performed by contractor/subcontractor on CONTRACTOR's behalf.
- H. Contractual liability coverage shall be included and shall not limit, by any modification or endorsement, coverage for liabilities assumed by CONTRACTOR under this Agreement as an "insured contract."
- I. Waiver of Subrogation. The policy shall be endorsed to include a Waiver of Subrogation ensuring that the CONTRACTOR and its insurer(s) waive any rights of recovery by subrogation, or otherwise, against the DISTRICT, its directors, board, and committee members, officers, officials, agents, volunteers, and employees. CONTRACTOR shall defend and pay any and all damages, fees, and costs, of any kind, arising out of, pertaining to, or in any way resulting from CONTRACTOR's failure to provide the waiver of subrogation from its insurance carrier(s).
- J. Independent Contractor's Liability shall not limit coverage for liability and/or damages arising out of, pertaining to, or in any way resulting from Services provided under this Agreement.
- K. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the DISTRICT, its directors, board, and committee members, officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers must be covered as Additional Insureds on a primary and noncontributory basis on all underlying, excess and umbrella policies that shall be evidenced in each case by an endorsement. Coverage for the Additional Insureds

must be as broad as ISO forms CG 20 10 (ongoing operations) and CG 20 37 (completed operations) for liability arising in whole, or in part, from work performed by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR, or in any way related to Services performed under this Agreement.

L. A severability of interest provision must apply for all the Additional Insureds, ensuring that CONTRACTOR's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom a claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the policies' limit(s).

Verification of Commercial General Liability (CGL) Insurance Coverage

As the CONTRACTOR'S Insurance Broker/Agent, Officer, or Risk Manager, I hereby verify that I have reviewed and confirmed that the CONTRACTOR carries Commercial General Liability insurance, as required by this Agreement, including the relevant provisions applicable to all required insurance:

Self-Insured Retention: Amount: \$		
Policy Limit:		
Policy Number:		
Policy Period: from	to	
Insurance Carrier Name:		
Insurance Broker/Agent or Officer or Risk Manag	ger - Print Name:	
Insurance Broker/Agent or Officer or Risk Manag	ger's Signature:	

III. Business Auto Liability Insurance Coverage

- A. CONTRACTOR's insurance shall be primary, and any insurance or self-insurance procured or maintained by the DISTRICT shall not be required to contribute to it.
- B. The insurance requirements under this Agreement shall be the greater of (1) the minimum coverage and limits specified in this Agreement; or (2) the broader coverage and maximum limits of coverage of any insurance policies or proceeds available to the Named Insured. It is agreed that these insurance requirements shall not in any way act to reduce coverage that is broader or that includes higher limits than the minimums required herein. No representation is made that the minimum insurance requirements of this Agreement are sufficient to cover the obligations of the CONTRACTOR.
- C. Minimum Requirements. Auto insurance with minimum coverage and limits as follows: Each Occurrence Limit (per accident) and in the Aggregate: \$2,000,000 Bodily Injury and Property Damage: \$2,000,000
- D. Coverage must include either "owned, non-owned, and hired" autos or "any" automobile. This provision ensures the policy covers losses arising out of use of company-owned vehicles

("owned autos"), employee's personal autos ("non-owned autos" meaning not owned by company/insured) or autos that are rented or leased ("hired autos").

- E. If CONTRACTOR is transporting hazardous materials or contaminants, evidence of the Motor Carrier Act Endorsement-hazardous materials clean-up (MCS-90, or its equivalent) must be provided.
- F. If CONTRACTOR's Scope of Services under this Agreement exposes a potential pollution liability risk related to transport of potential pollutants, seepage, release, escape or discharge of any nature (threatened or actual) of pollutants into the environment arising out of, pertaining to, or in any way related to CONTRACTOR's and/or contractor's/subcontractor's performance under this Agreement, then Auto Liability Insurance policies must be endorsed to include Transportation Pollution Liability insurance. Alternatively, coverage may be provided under the CONTRACTOR's Pollution Liability Policies if such policy has no exclusions that would restrict coverage under this Agreement. Coverage shall also include leakage of fuel or other "pollutants" needed for the normal functioning of covered autos.
- G. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the DISTRICT, its directors, board, and committee members, officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers must be covered as Additional Insureds on a primary and noncontributory basis on all underlying and excess and umbrella policies.
- H. A severability of interest provision must apply for all the Additional Insureds, ensuring that CONTRACTOR's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom a claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the insurer's limits of liability.

Verification of Business Auto Liability Insurance Coverage

As the CONTRACTOR'S Insurance Broker/Agent, Officer, or Risk Manager, I hereby verify that I have reviewed and confirmed that the CONTRACTOR carries Business Automobile Liability insurance, as required by this Agreement, including the relevant provisions applicable to all required insurance:

Self-Insured Retention: Amount: \$	
Policy Limit: \$	
Policy Number:	
	to
Insurance Carrier Name:	
Insurance Broker/Agent or Officer or Risk Mar	nager – Print Name:
Insurance Broker/Agent or Officer or Risk Mar	nager's Signature:

IV. Professional Liability (also known as Errors and Omissions) Insurance Coverage

- A. The insurance requirements under this Agreement shall be the greater of (1) the minimum coverage and limits specified in this Agreement; or (2) the broader coverage and maximum limits of coverage of any insurance policies or proceeds available to the Named Insured. It is agreed that these insurance requirements shall not in any way act to reduce coverage that is broader or that includes higher limits than the minimums required herein. No representation is made that the minimum insurance requirements of this Agreement are sufficient to cover the obligations of the CONTRACTOR.
- B. Minimum Requirements:Professional Liability Insurance with minimum limits as follows:
\$2,000,000Each Claim:\$2,000,000Aggregate Limit:\$2,000,000

If Coverage is written on a claims-made form, the following shall apply:

- 1. The retroactive date must be shown and must be before the date of the Agreement or the beginning of the Services.
- 2. Insurance must be maintained, and evidence of insurance must be provided for a minimum of three (3) years after completion of the Services.
- 3. If claims-made coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policies form with a retroactive date prior to the effective date of the Agreement, CONTRACTOR must purchase an extended reporting period for a minimum of three (3) years after completion of the Services.
- C. Insurance shall include prior acts coverage sufficient to cover the services under this Agreement.

Verification of Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) Insurance Coverage

As the CONTRACTOR'S Insurance Broker/Agent, Officer, or Risk Manager, I hereby verify that I have reviewed and confirmed that the CONTRACTOR carries Professional Liability insurance as required by this Agreement, including the relevant provisions applicable to all required insurance.

Self-Insured Retention: Amount: \$	
Policy Limit: \$	
Policy Number:	
Policy Period: from	_ to
Insurance Carrier Name:	
Insurance Broker/Agent or Officer or Risk Manager- P	rint Name:
Insurance Broker/Agent or Officer or Risk Manager's S	ignature:

V. Excess and/or Umbrella Liability Insurance Coverage (Optional – See Paragraph A below)

- A. The insurance requirements set forth above may be satisfied by a combination of primary and excess or umbrella policies. Where excess or umbrella policies are used the following shall apply:
- B. CONTRACTOR's insurance shall be primary, and any insurance or self-insurance procured or maintained by the DISTRICT shall not be required to contribute to it.
- C. The insurance requirements under this Agreement shall be the greater of (1) the minimum coverage and limits specified in this Agreement; or (2) the broader coverage and maximum limits of coverage of any insurance policies or proceeds available to the Named Insured. It is agreed that these insurance requirements shall not in any way act to reduce coverage that is broader or that includes higher limits than the minimums required herein. No representation is made that the minimum insurance requirements of this Agreement are sufficient to cover the obligations of the CONTRACTOR.
- D. Minimum Requirements: It is expressly understood by the parties that CONTRACTOR's Excess and/or Umbrella Liability policies shall, at minimum, comply with all insurance requirements set forth within this Agreement, and shall be at least as broad as coverage required of the underlying policies required herein.
 - 1. Coverage for Products, Completed Operations, and Ongoing Operations must be included in the insurance policies and shall not contain any "prior work" coverage limitation or exclusion applicable to any Services performed under this Agreement and, if it is a claims-made policy, it must be maintained for a minimum of three (3) years following final completion of the Services.
 - 2. There will be no exclusion for explosions, collapse, or underground damage (XCU).
 - 3. Insurance policies and Additional Insured Endorsements shall not exclude coverage for liability and damages from services performed by contractor/subcontractor on CONTRACTOR's behalf.
 - 4. Contractual liability coverage shall be included and shall not limit, by any modification or endorsement, coverage for liabilities assumed by CONTRACTOR under this Agreement as an "insured contract."
 - 5. Independent Contractor's Liability shall not limit coverage for liability and/or damage arising out of, pertaining to, or in any way related to Services provided under this Agreement.
 - 6. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the DISTRICT, its directors, officers, officials, agents, volunteers, and employees must be covered as Additional Insureds on a primary and noncontributory basis on all excess and umbrella policies. The Additional Insureds must be covered for liability arising in whole or in part from any premises, Products, Ongoing Operations, and Completed Operations by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR, in any way related to Services performed under this Agreement.
 - 7. A severability of interest provision must apply for all the Additional Insureds, ensuring that the CONTRACTOR's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom a claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the policy's limits.
 - 8. CONTRACTOR and its excess and/or umbrella Liability insurance coverage must waive any rights of subrogation against the DISTRICT, its directors, officers, officials, employees, agents,

and volunteers, and CONTRACTOR shall defend and pay any damages as a result of failure to provide the waiver of subrogation from the insurance carrier(s).

Verification of Excess and/or Umbrella Liability Insurance Coverage

As the CONTRACTOR'S Insurance Broker/Agent, Officer, or Risk Manager, I hereby verify that I have reviewed and confirmed that the CONTRACTOR carries Excess and/or Umbrella Liability insurance, as required by this Agreement, including the relevant provisions applicable to all required insurance.

Excess/Umbrella Limits: Amount \$	
Policy Limit: \$	
Policy Number:	
Policy Period fromto	
Insurance Carrier Name:	
Underlying Policy(ies) listed above to which Excess/Umbrella applies:	
Insurance Broker/Agent or Officer or Risk Manager - Print Name:	
Insurance Broker/Agent or Officer or Risk Manager's Signature:	
Appendix D CEP COMPLIANCE

(The CEP guidelines and forms can be downloaded from the District website at the following link: https://www.ebmud.com/business-center/contract-equity-program

If you have questions regarding the Contract Equity Program, please call (510) 287-0114)



EMPLOYMENT DATA AND CERTIFICATION INSTRUCTIONS (P-025)

COMPLETION OF THIS FORM IS REQUIRED FOR ALL BIDS AND PROPOSALS. AN IMPROPER OR INCOMPLETE FORM MAY RESULT IN REJECTION OF YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL OR TERMINATION OF YOUR CONTRACT

The East Bay Municipal Utility District REQUIRES the completion of this form when submitting any formal bid in response to a Notice to Contractors (NTC), Request for Statement of Qualifications (RSOQ), Request for Quotation (RFQ), or Request for Proposal (RFP) for materials, equipment, construction or professional or general services. Bidder/Proposer who fails to complete all applicable sections of this form may be denied contracts with the District.

Note: If you have difficulty completing this form or need clarification of the instructions, contact the Contract Equity Office at 510-287-0114.

	SECTION	A	
FIRM NAME			
PARENT COMPANY			SUBCONTRACTORS/TRUCKERS/
			SUPPLIERS
STREET ADDRESS (City, State, ZIP)			Submit a separate P-25 form for each subcontractor/trucker/supplier doing work for \$70,000 or more.
MAILING ADDRESS (City, State, ZIP)			
PHONE NO.	FAX ND.	WEBSITE	E-MAIL

A1. TYPE OF ORGANIZATION

	INDIVIDUAL	NAMEOFO	WNER:				
	NONPROFIT CORP.		PUBLICLY HELD CORP. FOREIGN-OWNED	STATE OF	INCORPORATION:		
Nam	e(s), title, family relat	ionship(s) and	i percentage of stock ownership to	r all shareholde	rs who own 25% or more d	f stock in the corporation.	
NAME	E				TITLE	FAMILY RELATIONSHIP	PERCENTAGE
_							%
							%
	JOINT VENTURE						
List o	f Participants - Indic	ate percentag	ge of work to be realized by each.				
							%
							96

PARTNERSHIP

P-025 • 04/23/15

Names of Partners - Indicate whether (G) General or (L) Limited.

A2. COMPOSITION OF OWNERSHIP

Indicate the percent of ethnic and gender ownership below

	Non-Hispa	inic Origin			Asian			Other	
	White/ Caucasian	Black/ African American	Hispanic/ Latin American	Asian American	Asian-Pacific Islander American	Aslan- Indian American	Native American	Indicate	Refuse to State*
MALE									
FEMALE									
TOTAL									

" Firms that refuse to state will be classified as "Other".

1 of 4

P-025-Employment-Data-and-Certification-Instructions.pdf

						S	SECTION B	~							
B1. EMPLOYMENT DATA	T DATA														
Indicate below the number of empl	ber of emp	aloyees in ee	ach occup	ational cate	gory for ea	ich of the e	loyees in each occupational catagory for each of the ethnic groups listed for your firm's permanent workforce. (Report employees in only one	ps listed fo	r your firm'	s permanel	rt workford	ce. (Report	emp byees	in only on	0
category. Permanent workforce is defined as full- and part-time employees with 6 months or more of confinuous service.) You may attach your EEO1 report in lieu of completing the form below. Please provide both your firm's consolidated and individual establishment EEO1 reports.	orkforce is oth your fit	defined as rm's consol	full- and pa idated and	art-time em	ployees with the stablishme	th 6 month ent EEO1 r	is or more (reports.	of continuo	us service.	You may	attach you	rEEO1 rep	ort in lieu of	completin	g the form
-															
	lier	, and					PACE/ET	RACE/ETHNICITY (number of employees) Not Histenio of Latino	in or Latino	mpi oyees)					
	orl	or Latino			Male							Female			
	Mab	Female	eiihw	Black or African American	Native Hawailan Or Other Pacific Islander	Aslan	American Indan or Native Native	Two or More Races	elihW	Black or African American	Native Hawalian or Other Pacific Islander	Aslan	American Indian or Abska Native	Two or More Races	Total
JOB CATEGORIES	۷	8	0	٥	H		ø	т	_	-	×	-	W	z	0
Executive/Serrior Level Officials & Managers															
FrstMid-Level Officials & Managers															
Professionals															
Technicians															
Sales Workers															
Administrative Support Workers															
Craft Workers															
Laborers & Helpers															
Service Workers															
Firm's Total															
Bay Area ⁺ Total															
* Alarmoda, Gontera Costa, Manth, Napa, San Francetoo, San Mateo, Solano, Sonoma, and Santa Clera Counties	, Napa, San Fr	ancieco, San M	tation, Solano,	Sonoma, and	Santa Clam Co	sources					5		-		
bia. loantry the metroportan star workforce is chawn. (See page 5)	e page 5)	tistical area		of round in	istical area (wow) nom which your intrins total permanent	a perman		bic, vame of person responsible for ann employment opportunitylaves in your firm:	person res pportunity!	sponsible ru laws in you	r firm:	A action a	bic. Name or person responsible for ammaave action and complance with equal employment opportunity laws in your firm:		B
B1b. If your firms total permanent identify:	permanent		is located	in one cour	workforce is located in one county or parish, please	h, please	INING	PRINT NAVE							
							TITLE								
P-025 • 04/23/15							2 of 4	TB.BHONE NJMBB	5		P-009	-Employment	P-005 Employment - Data - and-Cert Floation- Instructions.pd	d Rotton-hs	tructions pdf

P- +1/15

SECTION C

CERTIFICATION OF FIRM'S OWNERSHIP AND COMPLIANCE WITH EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY REQUIREMENTS REGARDING EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AND AFFIRMATIVE ACTION REPORTING AND COMPLIANCE PROGRAMS INCLUDING HAVING A DISTRICT APPROVED PROCESS FOR RESPONDING TO COMPLAINTS OF DISCRIMINATION, HARASSMENT, AND RETALIATION

The undersigned has been (is) authorized to execute this certificate on behalf of

and

NAME OF FIRM

swears under penalty of perjury that the foregoing statements are true and correct and that they include all material information necessary to identify and explain the operations of this firm as well as the ownership thereof. Any material misrepresentation will be grounds for terminating any purchase orders or contracts which may be or were awarded and for initiating actions under Federal or State laws concerning false statements. The District reserves the right to request support documentation, such as tax records, articles of incorporation and board minutes to verify composition of ownership.

The undersigned does further certify that the firm named above complies with the following non-discrimination clauses:

There shall be no discrimination against any person, or groups of persons, per Government Code Section 12940, Labor Code Section 1735, or any other applicable law or regulation in the performance of this contract.

There shall be no discrimination in the performance of this contract, against any person, or group of persons, on account of race, color, religion, religious creed, national origin, ancestry, gender including gender identity or expression, age, marital or domestic partnership status, mental disability, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), medical condition (including genetic characteristics or cancer), genetic information, sexual orientation, or military and veteran status. The Contractor shall not establish or permit any such practice(s) of discrimination with reference to the contract. Contractors determined to be in violation of this section will be deemed to be in material breach of the contract.

Contractor and its subcontractors shall abide by the requirements of 41 CFR §§ 60-1.4(a), 60-300.5(a) and 60-741.5(a). These regulations prohibit discrimination against qualified individuals based on their status as protected veterans or individuals with disabilities, and prohibit discrimination against all individuals based on their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin in the performance of this contract. Moreover, these regulations require that covered prime contractors and subcontractors take affirmative action to employ and advance in employment individuals without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, protected veteran status or disability.

The Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of these clauses in all subcontracts

EXECUTED IN		
	CITY, COUNTY, STATE	
ON		
	DATE	
ВҮ		
PRINT NAME		TITLE
BIGNATURE		PHONE NUMBER
P-025 • 04/23/15	3 of 4	P-025-Employment-Data-and-Certification-Instructions.pdf

P-025 SUPPLEMENT

Instructions to Determine Your Statistical Areas (SA): If you operate a business solely or predominantly within one of the SA's listed below, use that location. If you have multiple facilities within a single state, use a State SA. If you have multiple facilities throughout the United States, use Total United States percentage. If you have any questions, call 510-287-0114.

CA STATISTICAL AREAS	WM%	WW%	EM%	CA STATISTICAL AREAS	WM%	WW%	EM%
BAKERSFIELD	29.7%	24.6%	45.7%	SAN JOSE	26.9%	21.0%	52.1%
FRESNO	25.1%	21.6%	53.3%	SAN LUIS OBISPO-ATASCADERO-			
LOS ANGELES-LONG BEACH	20.2%	16.4%	63.5%	PASA ROBLES	42.3%	36.6%	21.1%
MERCED	24.9%	21.1%	54.0%	SANTA BARBARA-SANTA MARIA-			
MODESTO	33.0%	28.4%	38.6%	LOMPOC	31.8%	28.6%	39.6%
OAKLAND	28.0%	24.2%	47.8%	SANTA CRUZ-WATSONVILLE	37.5%	32.1%	30.4%
REDDING	46.6%	41.5%	11.9%	SANTA ROSA	39.8%	36.9%	23.4%
RIVERSIDE-SAN BERNADINO	28.2%	23.4%	48.3%	STOCKTON-LODI	28.1%	24.5%	47.4%
SACRAMENTO	36.1%	32.3%	31.6%	VALLEJO-FAIRFIELD-NAPA	30.2%	26.8%	42.9%
SAN DIEGO	32.4%	27.5%	40.2%	VENTURA	33.3%	27.6%	39.1%
SAN FRANCISCO	30.8%	25.1%	44.0%	YUBA CITY	34.9%	31.0%	34.1%

CA COUNTIES	WM%	WW%	EM%	CA COUNTIES	WM%	WW%	EM%
9 BAY AREA COUNTIES*	32.3%	27.8%	39.9%	SAN BERNARDINO	26.5%	22.3%	51.1%
ALAMEDA/CONTRA COSTA	28.9%	24.9%	46.2%	SAN DIEGO	32.4%	27.5%	40.2%
ALAMEDA	24.5%	21.6%	53.9%	SAN FRANCISCO	29.2%	22.5%	48.3%
CONTRA COSTA	33.3%	28.2%	38.5%	SAN JOAQUIN	28.1%	24.5%	47.4%
EL DORADO	46.7%	39.4%	13.9%	SAN LUIS OBISBO	42.3%	36.6%	21.1%
FRESNO	24.7%	21.4%	54.0%	SAN MATEO	28.6%	23.6%	47.9%
LOS ANGELES	20.2%	16.4%	63.5%	SANTA CLARA	26.9%	21.0%	52.1%
MARIN	42.8%	38.4%	18.8%	SANTA CRUZ	37.5%	32.1%	30.4%
MENDOCINO	40.4%	37.0%	22.6%	SHASTA	46.6%	41.5%	11.9%
MERCED	24.9%	21.1%	54.0%	SOLANO	27.8%	24.6%	47.6%
MONTEREY	23.8%	21.3%	54.9%	SONOMA	39.8%	36.9%	23.4%
NAPA	37.6%	33.6%	28.8%	STANISLAUS	33.0%	28.4%	28.6%
ORANGE	30.9%	25.5%	43.6%	YOLO	31.7%	29.8%	38.5%
RMERSIDE	30.1%	24.7%	45.3%	YUBA	36.7%	34.0%	29.4%
SACRAMENTO	32.7%	30.0%	37.3%	*ALAMEDA, CONTRA COSTA, MA	RIN, NAPA, SAN FR	ANCISCO, SA	
				SOLAND SONOMA AND SANTA	CLADA		

SOLANO, SONOMA, AND SANTA CLARA

STATES	WM%	WW%	EM%	STATES	WM%	WW%	EM%
ALABAMA	40.8%	33.2%	26.0%	MONTANA	49.1%	42.5%	8.4%
ALASKA	40.2%	33.1%	26.7%	NEBRASKA	47.1%	42.7%	10.2%
ARIZONA	37.0%	31.7%	31.3%	NEVADA	37.8%	31.3%	30.9%
ARKANSAS	44.0%	37.5%	18.5%	NEW HAMPSHIRE	50.6%	45.0%	4.4%
CALIFORNIA	28.0%	23.6%	48.4%	NEW JERSEY	36.7%	31.5%	31.7%
COLORADO	42.2%	36.2%	21.6%	NEW MEXICO	26.6%	23.1%	50.3%
CONNETICUT	42.4%	37.8%	19.8%	NEW YORK	35.0%	30.9%	34.1%
DELEWARE	39.3%	35.5%	25.3%	NORTH CAROLINA	39.1%	34.0%	26.9%
DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA	19.2%	18.0%	62.8%	NORTH DAKOTA	49.6%	44.4%	6.0%
FLORIDA	35.7%	30.9%	33.4%	OHIO	46.1%	40.2%	13.7%
GEORGIA	35.9%	30.0%	34.2%	OKLAHOMA	41.7%	35.4%	22.9%
HAWAII	13.1%	11.1%	75.8%	OREGON	45.5%	39.5%	15.0%
IDAHO	48.6%	40.8%	10.5%	PENNSYLVANIA	46.4%	40.2%	13.4%
ILLINOIS	38.6%	33.6%	27.8%	RHODE ISLAND	44.1%	41.4%	14.5%
INDIANA	47.1%	40.6%	12.3%	SOUTH CAROLINA	37.6%	32.4%	30.0%
IOWA	49.2%	44.8%	6.0%	SOUTH DAKOTA	48.0%	43.6%	8.4%
KANSAS	45.6%	40.1%	14.3%	TENNESSEE	44.1%	37.1%	18.8%
KENTUCKY	48.4%	41.9%	9.7%	TEXAS	31.5%	26.1%	42.4%
LOUISIANA	37.3%	30.0%	32.7%	UTAH	47.7%	39.1%	13.2%
MAINE	50.6%	46.5%	2.9%	VERMONT	50.4%	46.3%	3.3%
MARYLAND	34.0%	30.2%	35.8%	VIRGINIA	38.6%	34.0%	27.3%
MASSACHUSETTS	44.0%	40.6%	15.3%	WASHINGTON	43.6%	37.6%	18.8%
MICHIGAN	44.1%	37.5%	18.4%	WEST VIRGINIA	51.9%	43.3%	4.9%
MINNESOTA	47.6%	43.1%	9.3%	WISCONSIN	47.5%	42.8%	9.6%
MISSISSIPPI	36.1%	29.6%	34.3%	WYOMING	49.0%	41.4%	9.6%
MISSOURI	45.6%	40.3%	14.1%				

TOTAL USA

39.0% 33.7% 27.2%

WM = White Men, WW = White Women, EM = Ethnic Minority. Figures compiled from the 2010 Census of Population, U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census.

P-025 • 04/23/15

4 of 4

P-025-Employment-Data-and-Certification-Instructions.pdf



CONTRACT EQUITY PARTICIPATION (P-040)

BIDDER'S / PROPOSER'S NAME

PROJECT NAME

ADDRESS

SPEC. / PROPOSAL NO. (If applicable)

E-MAIL ADDRESS

BID / PROPOSAL AMOUNT \$

PHONE NO.

FAX NO.

This form shall be submitted by first and second apparent low bidders within 2 Work Days of bid opening time for construction projects and by all proposers with their proposal for professional and general services. All subcontractors, truckers and suppliers at any tier level of participation, known at this time shall be listed on this form. Submit a separate P-025 form for each Subcontractor/Thucker/Supplier with a subcontract amount of \$70,000 or more.

COMPANY AND CONTACT NAME, ADDRESS,	OWNER	SHIP		TYPE OF WORK	ESTIMATED
PHONE NUMBER AND E-MAIL ADDRESS	ETHNICITY ^a	GEN	DER	TO BE DONE [®]	DOLLAR AMOUNT
		M	F		
Note: Additional spaces are provided on the back of	of this form.				
The subcontractors, truckers, and supplier	s listed in this	s sch	edule	shall be utilized for the Work cond	ditioned upon execu-
tion of a contract with East Bay Municipal I					
and suppliers must comply with Section I	II.B. Substitu	tion	or Re	placement in the Contract Equity	Program and Equal
Employment Opportunity Guidelines.					
Signature of Authorized Bidder / Proposer's Official				Date	
Print Nama				Titlo	
	the second second			the Contractor and the second second	
¹ The person or persons, co-partnership, firm or en of furnishing materials, equipment, and/or performing					contractor for the purpose
² Ethnic Classifications: A/PIA Aslan-Pacific Isla	ander American		H/		I/CA White/Caucasian
B/AA Black/African An	nerican		N	Native American	American

⁹ Describe exact portion, location (If necessary) of Item to be performed or furnished by that subcontractor.

P-040 • 05/11/2016

1 of 2

P-040-Contract-Equity-Participation.pdf



CONTRACT EQUITY PARTICIPATION (P-040)

COMPANY AND CONTACT NAME, ADDRESS,	OWNER			TYPE OF WORK	ESTIMATED
COMPANY AND CONTACT NAME, ADDRESS, PHONE NUMBER AND E-MAIL ADDRESS	ETHNICITY ²	GEN	DER	TYPE OF WORK TO BE DONE ³	DOLLAR AMOUN
			$\left - \right $		
	1	1	I		1

P-040 • 05/11/2016

2 of 2

P-040-Contract-Equity-Participation.pdf



The apparent low bidder shall submit the following information to demonstrate that a good faith outreach effort to meet the Contracting Objectives has been made if its Form P-040 Contract Equity Participation indicates that the Contracting Objectives will not be met. It is suggested that even if the Contracting Objectives appear to be met on Form P-040, this form still needs to be complected in case the Contracting Objectives are determined by District evaluation to have not been met.

The complete description of the following items along with all of the Good Faith Outreach Efforts (GFOE's) are in the Section IA of the Contract Equity Program and Equal Employment Opportunity Guidelines:

- Items of works for which the bidder requested subbids, trucking or materials to be supplied by subcontractors in all availability groups
- Information furnished interested subcontractors, truckers, or suppliers in the way of plans, specifications and requirements for the work
- Any breakdown of items of work into economically feasible units to facilitate subcontractor participation (GFOE's #2 & 6)

ITEMS OF WORK OR SUPPLIES IDENTIFIED					
1	6				
2	7				
3	8				
4	9				
Б	10				
INFORMATION FURNISHED					
BREAKDOWN OF ITEMS					

P-041 • 04/20/15

1 of 4

P-041-Good-Faith-Outreach-Efforts-Documentation.pdf



The names and dates of advertisements in the project's geographic market area of each newspaper, trade paper, and availability group focus paper in which a request for subcontractor participation for this project was placed by the bidder (GFOE #3)

NAME OF PUBLICATION	DATES OF ADVERTISEMENT

The names and dates of notices of all subcontractors in the project's geographic market area solicited by direct mail, and the dates and methods used for following up initial solicitations to determine with certainty whether the subcontractors were interested (GFOE's #4 & 5)

NAME OF SUBCONTRACTOR SOLICITED	SOLICITATION DATES	FOLLOW UP METHODS	FOLLOW UP DATES
P-041 • 04/20/15	2 of -	4 P-041-Good-Faith-Outread	h-Efforts-Documentation.pd

2 of 4



- The names of subcontractors, truckers, and suppliers who submitted bids for any of the work indicated on page one of this form whose bids were not accepted
- A summary of the bidder's discussions and/or negotiations with them
- The name of the subcontractor, trucker or supplier that was selected for that portion of the work, and the reasons for the bidder's choice. (If the reason for rejecting a bid was price, give the price bid by the rejected subcontractor and the price bid by the selected subcontractor, trucker, or supplier.) (GFOE #8)

NAME OF REJECTED SUBCONTRACTOR	SUMMARY OF DISCUSSIONS / NEGOTIATIONS	NAME OF SELECTED SUBCONTRACTOR AND REASONS FOR THAT CHOICE

Please Note: Use additional sheets of paper, if necessary.

P-041 • 04/20/15

3 of 4

P-041-Good-Faith-Outreach-Efforts-Documentation.pdf



 Assistance that the bidder has extended to rejected subcontractors identified above to remedy the deficiency in their subbids (GFOE #9)

NAME OF REJECTED SUBCONTRACTOR	ASSISTANCE EXTENDED

Any additional data to support a demonstration of good faith efforts, such as contacts with subcontractor's assistance agencies (GFOE #7):

NAME OF COMMUNITY ORGANIZATIONS OR CONTRACTORS GROUPS	ADDITIONAL GOOD FAITH OUTREACH EFFORTS

Please Note: Use additional sheets of paper, if necessary. Appropriate documentation, such as copies of newspaper ads, letters soliciting bids, and telephone logs, should accompany this form.

P-041 • 04/20/15

4 of 4

P-041-Good-Faith-Outreach-Efforts-Documentation.pdf



CONTRACT EQUITY PROGRAM GUIDELINES CERTIFICATION (P-042)

Pursuant to the East Bay Municipal Utility District's ("District") Contract Equity Program Guidelines, Section I, Paragraph A.1, I hereby declare, under the penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California, that

- I am familiar with the District's Contract Equity Program and Equal Employment Opportunity Guidelines and understand all of the program's requirements;
- I understand and agree to comply with the District's Contract Equity Program, and all of the requirements therein, including each of the Good Faith Outreach Efforts;
- I will post and distribute applicable District-supplied Equal Employment Opportunity material. My firm has a process for responding to complaints of Equal Employment Opportunity discrimination, harassment, and retaliation and a copy will be provided upon request;
- I understand and agree that promoting local access to jobs that pay prevailing wages may improve the workforce diversity and may benefit employment in communities being impacted by this project; and
- 6) I understand, and expressly agree, on behalf of my company, corporation, joint-venture or sole-proprietorship, that the District may disqualify the bid/proposal submitted if we have not complied with the District's Contract Equity Program, and all of the requirements therein.

EXECUTED	IN		
		(City, County, State)	
ON		FOR	
	(Month, Date, Year)	(Bidder's / Proposer's Company Name)	
BY			
	(Print Namo)	(Titla)	
	(Signature)	(Phone Number)	
42 • 09/03/15		P-042-Contract-Equity-Program-Guid	alines. Certification off
		1 of 1	

.;

P-0



DESIGNATION OF SUBCONTRACTORS (P-046)

Name of Bidder/Proposer _

In compliance with the provisions of the Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act (Division 2, Part 1, Chapter 4 of the Public Contract Code of the State of California, and any amendments thereof), each bidder shall set forth below:

- The name, the location of the place of business, and the California Contractor license number of each Subcontractor who will perform work or labor or render service to the Contractor in or about the construction of the work or improvement, or a Subcontractor licensed by the State of California who, under subcontract to the prime Contractor, specially fabricates and installs a portion of the work or improvement according to detailed drawings contained in the plans and specifications, in an amount in excess of one-half of one percent of the Contractor's total bid. List all Subcontractors meeting these criteria, including sole-source Subcontractors.
- The portion and estimated dollar amount of the work that will be done by each Subcontractor listed below. The Contractor shall list only one Subcontractor for each portion as is defined by the Contractor in its bid.

All Contractors bidding on a public works project and all Subcontractors of any tier shall be registered with the State Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Section 1725.5 of the Labor Code.

Please type or legibly print (attach additional sheets as necessary)

SUBCONTRACTOR'S COMPANY NAME CONTACT NAME / ADDRESS / PHONE NO.	CALIFORNIA LICENSE NUMBER	DESCRIPTION OF WORK TO BE PERFORMED	ESTIMATED \$ AMOUNT

P-046 • 06/18/15

P-046-Designation-of-Subcontractors.pdf



DESIGNATION OF SUBCONTRACTORS (P-046)

SUBCONTRACTOR'S COMPANY NAME CONTACT NAME / ADDRESS / PHONE NO.	CALIFORNIA LICENSE NUMBER	DESCRIPTION OF WORK TO BE PERFORMED	ESTIMATED \$ AMOUNT

P-046 • 00/18/15

P-046-Designation-of-Subcontractors.pdf

5. Circumvention by a general contractor who bids as a prime contractor of the irrement under Section 4154 for him or her to bid his or her subcontractors, by the cord listing andher contractor who will in hum subbit portions constituting the only of the work covered by the prime contract, shall be considered a violation is chapter and real subject their prime contractor to the ponettices soft orth in the chapter and real subject their prime contractor to the ponettices of both prime. of this cf ons 4110 and 4111.

4106. If a prime contractor falls to specify a subcontractor or if a prime contractor 4106. It a prime contractor tails to specify a subcontractor or if a prime contractor specifies more than one subcontractor for the same point on term of the point on the contract in second or an analysis of the prime contractor's total to the prime contractor's total to the prime contractor's agrees that how ranks of while validable to portion that portion himself or harsalf, and that the prime contractor shall portant that portion himself or harsalf. The prime contractor shall be prime to the prime contract, see only on the sector of 100 µmself. The prime contractor shall be prime to the solidar of the work, the prime contractor shall be subject to the predist and and the Section 411.

4107. A prime contractor whose bid is accepted may not:

(a) Substitute a person as subcontractor in the subcontractor failed in the prime contractor and the headed subcontractor within the specified time but the subcontractor within the prime contractor within the specified time but the subcontractor within the prime contractor within the specified time but the subcontractor in any of the following situations: in any of the following situations:

atoms period as association tracks in any of the lockwarg statustra. (i) When the subsocirtactor tistic in the bid, after howing tast a reasonable opportunity to do so, tails or rotunes to execute a written contrast for the scope of work specified in the subcontractor bid and at the price specified in the subcontractor's bid, when that written contrast, based upon the general turns, conditions, plans, and appolitations for the price) in thready of the terms of that subcontractor's written bid, is presented to the subcontractor by the prime contractor.

(2) When the listed subcontractor becomes insolvent or the subject of an order for relief in bankruptcy.

(3) When the listed subcontractor fails or refuses to perform his or her subcontract. (4) When the listed subcontractor fails or refuses to meet the bond requirements of the prime contractor as set forth in Section 4108.

(5) When the prime contractor demonstrates to the awarding authority, or its duly authorized officer, subject to the further provisions set forth in Section 4107.5, that the name of the subcontractor was listed as the result of an inadvertant ciencial authoria the nam

orror (6) When the listed subcontractor is not licensed pursuant to the Contractors License Law.

(7) When the awarding authority, or its duly authorized officer, determines that the work partormed by the Islad subcontractor is substantially unsatisfactory and not in substantial accordance with the plane and spocifications, or that the subcontractor is substantially deleying or disrupting the progress of the work.

responsible contractors Prior to approve of the prime contractor's request for the substitution, the awarding authority, or its duty authorized officer, shall give notice in writing to the leted subcontractor of the prime contractor's request to authoritike and of the reasons for therequest. The notice shall be served by certified or registreed mail to the letel invest-actions of the subcontractor. The laided subcontractor who has boan so notified has the versing dates within which to submit writion objections to the substitution to the evencing authority. Failure to the hase written objections constitutes the leted subcontractor's consent to the substitution.

tion objections are filed, the awarding authority shall give notice in writing of ist five working days to the listed subcontractor of a hearing by the awarding authority on the prime contractor's request for substitution.

- Incitive on the prime contractor's request for subsequence. Permit a subcontract to be voluntarily assigned or transferred or allow it to be performed by anyone other than the original subcontractor listed in the original bid, without the consent of the awarding suthority, or its duly authorized officer.
- (c) Other than in the performance of "change orders" sausing changes or deviations from the original contract, subjet or subcontract any portion of the work in excess of one-half of 1 percent of the prime contractor's total bid as to which his or her original bid did not designed as subcontractor.

Might but do not not ownight to a prime contractor under Section 4104 as Hurrishing and installing carpoing, shal volumarly sublet his or her subcontract with respect to any position of the labor to be portioned unlices he or the specified the subcontractor in his or her bid for that subcontract to the prime contractor.

Amountmeans time or ner care set that supporting to the prime contractor. 4075. The prime contractor as a condition to assert a claim of hardworknot claimal arror in the lating of a subcontractor shall within two working days after the time of the prime bid cogning by the asserting authority give withins notice to the asserting subhority and cogies of that notice to both the subcontractor he or she claims to have liabed in our or and the historiadid subcontractor who had bid to the prime contractor prior to bid opening.

Subcontractor listing changes may also be made if and in accordance with Labor Code 1725.5. P-046 • 06/18/15

3 of 3

Any listed subcontractor who has been notified by the prime contractor in accordance with this socion as to an inadvertant clerical error shall be allowed site working days from the time of the prime side opening within which is submit to be avaiding authority and/s the prime contractor written objection to the prime contractor's claim (Indiadvertrait clained) area. Failure of the listed subcontractor to the time written notice within the six working days shall be primery existence of his or her agreement that an indiadvertrait claim area.

The awarding authority shall, after a public hearing as provided in Section 4107 and in the absence of compelling reasons to the contrary, consent to the substitution of the intended subcontractor:

The immode subcontractor: (g) = (f) the prince contractor; (g) the subcontractor listed in error, and (b) the intended subcontractor each subtrit in alfidavit to be exercing authority along with such additional without the simple of the subcontractor listed and arror was in fact made, provided that the alfidavits trem each of the three parties are flow difficult addit working days in this form of the parties days forming, or

prime constant is clean or reached and cancel and a provided in the second of the additional area likely both the prime contractor and the histocod subcontractor but the listed subcontractor has, within six working days from the time of the prime objection to the prime contractor's clean of hadverland clean area, the awarding authority shall medigate the clean of the perfise and shall hold a public hearing as provided in Section 4107 to obtamine the walking of holds cleans. Any determinition made shall be based on the lates contraliand in the doclarations subtrittle under the doclarations of the perfise and clean shall hold a public hearing as made and database of the earlier constraints of the database submitted to base panelly of pellipty all three perities and supported by leathnowy under safe and subject to cross-examination. The executing subtrafty may, on its own motion or depositoria, or any other party is prosessioned in the database of the database the dockland the executing subhoffy.

The uservalue of the emerge authority. 4977. It is contractive who entries this contract with a public settly for investigation, removal or remodul action, or disposal relative to the relatese or presence of a hazardoux metalential or hazardoux weeks table to pay a subcontractor registrand as a hazardoux metale hasing parsumer to Socion 20163 of the Health and Safety Code within 10 days after the havefugation, encourse or remodal action, or disposal is completed, the autoontractor may serve a stop notice upon the public entity in accordance with Chagter 4 (pommancing with Saction 9360) of Title 3 of Part 6 of Delation 4 of the CAR Code.

4108. [8] It shall be the responsibility of each subcontractor submitting bids to a prime contractor to be prepared to submit a faithful performance and payment bond or bonds if so requested by the prime contractor.

auccurrent is subaturative usawge or darupting the progress of the work.
e) When the lated abscontractor is hubble to work on a public works projust
(b) When the lated abscontractor is hubble to be contractor of the prime contractor and at the expense of the prime contractor is negulated with the prime contractor is negulated abscontractor.

(c) (1) The bond or bonds may be required under this section only if the prime contractor in his or her written or publicad request for subbids clearly specifies the amount and requirements of the bond or bonds.

(2) If the expense of the bond or bonds required under this section is to be borne by the subcontractor, that requirement shall also be specified in the prime contractor's written or published request for subbids.

(3) The prime contractor's tailure to specify bond requirements, in accordance with this subdivision, in the written or published request for subbids shall preclude the prime contractor from imposing bond requirements under this section.

4168. Subliding or subcontracting of any portion of the work in access of one-half of 1 percent of the prime contractor's total bid as to which no subcontractor was usingshalf in the original bid shall only be permitted in cases of public energyproy or no costly, and then only after a thering reduced to writing as a public record of the wanding automotive shall public the bids constituting the emergency or mosciety.

emeaning summary setting forth the lacts constituting the emerginary or nocessity. 4110. A private constract violating any of the providence of the chapter violates his or har construct and the awarding authority may exercise the option, in its own discretion; of () concolling this or the construct of () assessing the prime constractor a panelly in an emoust of not more than 10 percent of the amount of the subcontract Involved, and this panelly shall be deposited in the limit out of which the prime constracts in exercised, in any proceedings under this social to heaptime constract in all bas entitled to a public heating and to the darget notice of the time and place head.

P-046-Designation-of-Subcontractors.pdf

CEP COMPLIANCE

East Bay Municipal Utility District

East Bay Plain Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan Periodic Evaluation, Amendment and Implementation Support (WSID-0325)

FIRMS UTILIZED		MINIMUM <u>AMOUNT*</u>	MINIMUM <u>PERCENT**</u>
(Name of Subcontractor's firm)		\$(dollars)	(1 to 99)
(Name of Subcontractor's firm)		\$(dollars)	(1 to 99)
	TOTAL	\$(dollars)	(1 to 99)

* Does not include CONSULTANT's markup. (Include this footnote only if your contract includes markup on subcontractors.)

** Based on a Maximum Cost Ceiling amount of \$(dollars).



Pursuant to Public Contract Code (PCC) § 2204, an Iran Contracting Act Certification is required for solicitations of goods or services of \$1,000,000 or more.

To submit a bid or proposal to East Bay Municipal Utility District (District), you must complete **ONLY ONE** of the following two paragraphs. To complete paragraph 1, check the corresponding box **and** complete the certification for paragraph 1. To complete paragraph 2, check the corresponding box and attach a copy of the written permission from the District.

1. We are not on the current list of persons engaged in investment activities in Iran created by the California Department of General Services ("DGS") pursuant to PCC § 2203(b), and we are not a financial institution extending twenty million dollars (\$20,000,000) or more in credit to another person, for 45 days or more, if that other person will use the credit to provide goods or services in the energy sector in Iran and is identified on the current list of persons engaged in investment activities in Iran created by DGS.

CERTIFICATION FOR PARAGRAPH 1:

I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY, that I am duly authorized to legally bind the proposer/bidder to the clause in paragraph 1. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California.

Firm:			
By:		Date:	
	(Signature of Bidder)		
Title:			
Signed at:		_ County, State of:	
	OR		

2. We have received written permission from the District to submit a bid or proposal pursuant to PCC § 2203(c) or (d). A copy of the written permission from the District is included with our bid or proposal.

П



EXHIBIT E INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SECURITY INFORMATION TO BE EXCLUDED FROM PUBLIC RECORDS ACT REQUESTS

EBMUD is required to respond to California Public Records Act (CA PRA) requests. Request for Proposals (RFP) are subject to CA PRA requests. If you are submitting sensitive security information about your products or services as part of your response to an RFP for software services, you must submit it as part of Exhibit F for it to be categorized as exempt from CA PRA requests. Any information submitted outside of Exhibit F may be released in response to a CA PRA request.

If you are submitting any information as an attachment, be sure to add the phrase EXHIBIT E to the title and/or filename.